EDINETOOOO
o = 2573
Ooooooooooooooooooad

19

30 20 31 19

(Multi Strategies Fund - Turkish Lira Money Market Fund)

(International Management Services Ltd.)

(lan Goodall, Director)
KYl 1102

61

(P.0.Box 61, Harbour Centre, George Town, Grand Cayman, KY1-
1102, Cayman Islands)

03 6212 8316

1/218



EDINETOOOO
o = 2573
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2019 6 28 UFJ
18.69

25 9 24 26 3 19

2/218



EDINETOOOO
o = 2573
Ooooooooooooooooooad

@
(Turkish Lira Money Market Fund)(
)
(Multi Strategies Fund)( )
2019 19
40
2013 10
@ (b)
( )
)
1974 30
2013 10
2013 10
2013 27
2013 24
2013 30
2015 10

®

3/218



EDINETOOOO

o = 2573
Ooooooooooooooooooad

FFAR :wlF - ARFFI—H-T7F

FreF

Falldswgx—sv—FubTrrF

A —Fat - wExIA L :
Feb R Y2y | BAMFETE G‘“f:kav“} L
7 7 FOBEOEER S LB ) N
RO RS LU EL) (7« T FOSIERE)
|
L_ wgiﬁﬁﬁﬂm
e o
RS S5
BEEA A RESH
ﬁﬁ?+ﬂy AIPEIVASFFRL
F = B (m—dr—) UIFop -
Ty bvATALY AR 77 7o FOREOREER
. P ; !
(L Ak B S ) 4
= 2570
e il
R - ESA e —
RITHRA | BRI 2
FO o BA R T o f 2 RF4 T o
OO S A

(BARIZET B FeiT S E )

TS b T
(SRR A D SR B A R Es)

HAIZBir &

(HA&RIz BT & SEEEn
Wincds L TR R

FHREERITSHT

TATLT 4 —TFFF-
A B L=
(FANFFVIFeF
(7« 77 FOFESEETTREEE)

2013 10

(2013
)

(2015 10

) 2013 10

27

4/218



EDINETOOOO
o = 2573
ooooodooodooooooodd

G.A.S.( ) 2013 10 (2015 10
) 2013 10
(2013 27
)
2013 11
( ')
)
2013 11 ¢
( )
2013 13 ¢
2013 13 ¢
2013 ( )
C )
')
C )
C )
C )
C )
C )
C )
)
(2018
)
)
(2019 )
)
(2019 ) )
)
2019 50,000 (538 9,500 )

41,667

5/218



Q)

EDINETOOOO

o = 2573

Ooooooooooooooooooad

) 2019 28 UFJ
107.79 )
)
1974 30
)
(2019 )
IMS KY1-1102
(The IMS Group Ltd.) 61 41,667 100
2013 10
(2018 )( )
1925
(
(

150

6/218

50



EDINETOOOO
o = 2573
Ooooooooooooooooooad

(6)
®)
(a) CINA
CIMA
CINA
CINA
CIMA
CINA
(2018
) (2018 )
2006 12 27 ( ) (2018 )
CIMA CIMA
CINA CINA
CINA
@
)
(

23 25 ) ( )

7/218



EDINETOOOO
o = 2573
Ooooooooooooooooooad

(EDINET)

EDINET
()

( 26 198 )( )

(b)

©)

8/218



EDINETOOOO

o = 2573
Ooooooooooooooooooad

(
)
US IGA 80
OECD —

CRS US IGA AEOI
US IGA CRS AEOI

AEOI

US IGA CRS

AEOI
AEOI
AEOI
CRS
AEOI
AEOI US 1GA
GIIN IRS
CRS
)
US IGA US IGA AEOI
FATCA
FATCA FATCA
FATCA FATCA
FATCA US IGA
US IGA

US IGA AEOI

9/218



2010

90

FATCA

(

10/218

EDINETOOOO
o = 2573
Ooooooooooooooooooad

AEOI

(2018 )



EDINETOOOO
o = 2573
Ooooooooooooooooooad

(2010 ( )

2019
2018

11/218



EDINETOOOO
o = 2573
Ooooooooooooooooooad

€Y

30

®
@

®

12/218



90

13/218

EDINETOOOO
o = 2573
Ooooooooooooooooooad

90



Mife=

EDINETOOOO

o = 2573

Ooooooooooooooooooad

90

PR
hezi
o

| |
EEREREE
UBREL b 8 T TR

|
ERREEAE
(8% 7= k2o U A —EE A

FoRGub -5 140 T 4

B ERY

FLPTr

LT A

LY
DT A
FLEFLr

kg,
F— b2 VA —HERS
Ty b - FO—oa LIPS
LT - a M A FLUT

Y

EE, 1T, &5
U AL ER
KA A FLETU

T

=
En)

EBF
i g

IR

W
FTh"
W

( N
et

W

Ak

- FAUE
—EEA
{3
T -
7 -
oW
w = bt
—gE
W || RE | | ek v
@Y - JE\JJ%JE
TR ) [ TeAgh - w-p240E
wawn- || e || R
SRR ) g Rk ) (R0
wh R —b20E
et TEEn
ToRRh - 7]
N SRUAR AN SRIAR

14/218

—L

P

e |[ aes |[ R
e || mur || AFHD
/g_rs.*lgﬁ 17

FUAgh-
ke

TuRish-
KEP

].

wEE
37
FRP)

i

EERF
AN UAR

L
TeRguh-
ke o

/\3’5}53

B FEIRY
Praih

b3 -




EDINETOOOO
o = 2573
Ooooooooooooooooooad

*

10

15/218



®

@

(b)

©

(D

©)
Q)
@
Q)
(H
@

)

M

EDINETOOOO
o = 2573
Ooooooooooooooooooad

22

15

16 (

50 )

10

365

10

10

16/218



EDINETOOOO
o = 2573
Ooooooooooooooooooad

120

(m

10

Q)
20

( 30

10%

10%

17/218



@

(b)

(D

18/218

EDINETOOOO
o = 2573
Ooooooooooooooooooad

©



EDINETOOOO
o = 2573
Ooooooooooooooooooad

19/218



EDINETOOOO
o = 2573
Ooooooooooooooooooad

€Y)
@
®
4)
®)

20/218



EDINETOOOO
o = 2573
Ooooooooooooooooooad

21/218



EDINETOOOO
o = 2573
Ooooooooooooooooooad

22/218



EDINETOOOO
o = 2573
Ooooooooooooooooooad

@
)

©

)

23/218



EDINETOOOO
o = 2573
Ooooooooooooooooooad

@
) ( )

24/218



EDINETOOOO
o = 2573
Ooooooooooooooooooad

€Y)

25/218



EDINETOOOO
o = 2573
Ooooooooooooooooooad

@

0.01
0.01

26/218



EDINETOOOO
o = 2573
Ooooooooooooooooooad

(

(

0.01
— o WEURIBRAYL—DikE ARYLIRMOBINE N
 nmese H‘Jzﬁflﬁ‘;tﬂ!mlt ER RN
| WA TR O RS
WA A - M OB
| EEEmoES AMIAEE
EFWUASER-ELSERDGE
lmuznu : -:‘.gu.zﬂlnu-isﬂmﬂi
AR R R " IZ P ¥ el
| = ﬂu_l )ZHBAEROIEN p—
A DS i
I. EREEN - =
e - EWET R AER
EMJEIDER
b Lo ,l, |z Tonans gans
WHEM: {:h MUZSRAOANE- R
bl—F <8 FAYASOER-F0 .r:-:umnmmu,
-EREUASERREOES AEZRERUTHO—T 7
- ERN A5 4R
) 2019
)

271218



EDINETOOOO
O00OO00O00000000000000000000000O0(E14984)
Oooooooooooobooooooad

FS5713. TFY FOERD I oE CERVICIE TIBBO—D E LT TRIB LS.

COIZR, P/ EEAENUHEES S A EERNIC
BREoESHRERER ) DECONEERE SAFHS) EETEI4L00RLERDT. E0IST7LIEUERIC
& THRER SAFER OHBERLCH0TT (58, SHEERNER SARNS) OFHiEnEE. Tk
FHO TrFE201350A24HICEREMBLEL.) EAENTERES S ALDMTHER LItEOT

25,000 100 100

=— B
20,000 BO & T
it
419%
O L il A5 i - AR — - gp gy,
1 il
S100% & * -’53.‘-'5 1% 28% 2%
Q o O Ba%—— : > B
ey e T A%
T IADFRRREN]| hae  cplEe T DRSS T ]
—ia LA LT R | aapw  CER -18.1%
— — 40 40 o
14/7 1547 1687 177 187 19/6 HFTAF B RUMEE FRESE OxDR SRER ERER

€ Bloomberg LP.SAURMBFEROF—FEEICRREBE
FA MR

SHRNSREFTAN | DA ONREESE. RINOHREESENICT » Y FAEERLESBELTRRELEBOTT.

BT, 07 - TrYECH. BERAESHRAN | DS oRREEHICRAT, T7a—SYRA YTy I REBALTLET.
A3 —RyAA»FudAE, Benusi—y (HEs (HOTHEREESE 00 “FaArSORTADRCEE) ) =HRL, BER
(2013F90248) ®10000&L TEHHMTRHLTLET.

w77y FOElRER (SAFERS R 8aAFSFOIERCHEroERNSESIEEN | DaToMREEEENELT. SORE
FERELALOTY, FAMNDS | ERNORS TR 1L 2A,

HERATTRES S ADEMRER (EEFMHG 2. SAREZOENCHIE FROEROEEHELT. SOREREMEL-LOTT.
BTV FERNRTRRE S SR SOFMREROLRE, HEOSEMOSAFRACEIOSMRERERT, TNSOFSE - Bx - B
NWEFSTICLTHRLBOTY.

77 v FORRRS RSN | DA oRRREST LUSINERT, RO | ST ORREEET SUTNICEIVTHELE
FHRETRLARTSBEFTOET.
#7 7y FOENRERR. SESISCLRARBTTHR=NTES, ARCANNTEDIEA,. Lti-T, ARICRNL RS,
FREAATIMERETOLT.
#7 7  Fi (SRR 7 SO TISERT S BOTREO A,

OEHEFTAOEN

B+ & - TORX (B3

Sl @R FTSEHEEEER M<B%E. A~—3)
FREE - SEFTMRERSEN

BAEM - BEGI =7 Lf TE1 EHE £ E MR

FEHEE- - FTSERERIEY B<B% A~=210
FMEMm - FTSEIFRE EmIER (F—2

) SEPFREES BRI, Bloomberg LP. THRELTULET.

TOPIX (WELESEES @ BaSdTmESmeE LT (EemEsnsE S00ET. CHINEETED, ERCNY. EREon
B AR SEENCMT ST TR, RRREESRES RS L TLET. . T rr R AmEENRS RiCL0mE, BEE
EREEINITOTIRTC. $WRESRRSFHIE. T2 ROSFEINECEETOLOISNRECHLTE, RETEL A,
FTSEsGHEEERS (B gE. @=—3), FISEEREMES B<8+ =3 SLUFTSERmEmRERES (H-—2) T
ST OHR)IZ. London Stock Exchange Group ploEfei22 000D L=k R WML £7. 8hRilit. FTSE International
Limited, FTSE Fixed Income LLCECRFNSOMBEABHICL - THRESNTLET. London Stock Exchange Group pioTbif £
TI—FiEwE, ERCER, feFitRRRrSELDLESAMICOULT. AACHLT o YREERL 3T A

28/218



EDINETOOOO
o = 2573
Ooooooooooooooooooad

€y
()
€)
@
0.04
43,000 ( )
2019 19 132,699.63
(b)
0.025
40,000
2019 19 82,937.20
©
0.85
2019 19
2,819,865.54
@

0.55

29/218



EDINETOOOO
o = 2573
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2019 19 1,824,618.90
®
0.08
8,900
8,900
270
45
(
) ( )
(
)

2019 19 430,904.05

Q)
0.12
2,100
( (
)
)

2019 19 559,951 .69
()]

0.35

2019 19 1,159,739.28

0.10

30/218



Q)

2019

EDINETOOOO

o = 2573

19

@
(i)
Gii)
(%)

(vii)
(ix)

31/218

Ooooooooooooooooooad

331,748.88
I
( )
(iv)
(vi)
( ) (viii)
(
€9
) 335,100
200,000



2019

®)
QY

2019

20

19

20

19

20.315
15

15.315

20.315
15

32/218

EDINETOOOO
o = 2573
Ooooooooooooooooooad

729,781.19
15.315 2038
2038 15
15.315 2038



EDINETOOOO
o = 2573
Ooooooooooooooooooad

20.315 15.315 2038
20 15

15.315
2038 15

20.315 15.315 2038
20 15

33/218



EDINETOOOO
o = 2573
Ooooooooooooooooooad

®

81

50

34/218



EDINETOOOO
o = 2573
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2013 24
D
2019
222,969,953.47 39.84
175,000,000.00 31.27
93,017,483.31 16.62
63,500,000.00 11.35
554,487,436.78 99.09
5,109,009.87 0.91
559,596,446.65 100.00
(10,459 )
@
2019
( ) ( )
)

)

TRT210721T11 19JUL19

24.700( 2019/7/19 175,000,000 1.0
24 . T%AKM

o

175,000,000.00( 1.0

o

175,000,000.00| 31.27

FDTRY AKM 20.25PCT

20.250| 2019/8/2 63,500,000 1.00 63,500,000.00( 1.00 63,500,000.00| 11.35
02AUG19

TURKEY GOVT BOND 8.5PCT

10JUL19 8.500( 2019/7/10 60,200,000 0.98 58,916,682.00( 1.00 59,986,988.06( 10.72

QNB FINANSBANK AS

. 2019/7/12 4 . 7,1 .52 . 7 43.04 7.1
TURKEY OPCT 12JULLS 0.000 019/7/ 0,000,000| 0.93 37,103,905.5; 0.99 39,755,843.0: 0

YAPI VE KREDI BANKASI

. 2019/7/12 4 . 79.52 . 72 . 7.1
AS OPCT 12JUL19 0.000 019/7/ 0,000,000| 0.96 38,565,979.5; 0.99 39,728,030.55 0

TURKIYE GARANTI BANKASI

OPCT 23JUL19 0.000( 2019/7/23 40,000,000| 0.97 38,676,360.00| 0.99 39,450,564.54 7.05

AKBANK TAS OPCT 02AUG19 0.000| 2019/8/2 40,000,000| 0.95 38,079,680.00( 0.98 39,222,148.95 7.01

GARANTI FAKTORING AS

OPCT 240CT19 0.000 | 2019/10/24 39,500,000| 0.92 36,352,550.00| 0.93 36,722,568.64 6.56

TURKEY GOVT BOND 13PCT

13NOV19 13.000( 2019/11/13 34,000,000| 0.94 31,824,000.00| 0.97 33,030,495.25 5.90

TURK EKONOMI BANKASI AS
10 0.000| 2019/8/23 25,000,000 0.96 23,888,665.00( 0.97 24,184,876.16 4.32
OPCT 23AUG19

YAPI KREDI YAT MEN OPCT
11 07AUGIS 0.000( 2019/8/7 4,000,000 0.97 3,894,480.00| 0.98 3,905,921.59 0.70

2019 11

2019
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2019
) 895,167 ) 0.1869
(2014 19 ) 47,895,501.00 0.01
53,054,040.00 991,580 0.01 0.1869
(2015 19 )
78,400,496. 1,465,305 .01 0.1869
(2016 19 ) 8,400,496.00 0.0
) 2,507,884 ) 0.1869
(2017 19 ) 134,183,223.78 0.01
} 5,112,379 ) )
(2018 19 ) 273,535,543.00 0.01 0.1869
470,02 ) 8,784,735 .01 0.1869
(2019 19 ) 0,023,300.00 0.0
2018 295,776,922.04 5,528,071 0.01 0.1869
301,465,299.85 5,634,386 0.01 0.1869
317,323,436.60 5,930,775 0.01 0.1869
10 333,308,274.82 6,229,532 0.01 0.1869
11 345,278,538.71 6,453,256 0.01 0.1869
12 371,864,938.13 6,950,156 0.01 0.1869
2019 415,730,678.91 7,770,006 0.01 0.1869
470,514,167.82 8,793,910 0.01 0.1869
486,036,014.24 9,084,013 0.01 0.1869
493,926,414.53 9,231,485 0.01 0.1869
509,061,882.72 9,514,367 0.01 0.1869
559,596,446 .65 10,458,858 0.01 0.1869
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2013595 201 459H 2015898 20 6E9H 201 7459E 2018%E0H  2019%68

2014 20 2015 19 0.000636892 0.011903511

2015 20 2016 19 0.000770311 0.014397113

2016 20 2017 19 0.000796358 0.014883931

.001067952 .
2017 20 2018 19 0.00106795 0.019960023
2018 20 2019 19 0.001729305 0.032320710
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FIRMEE
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FASEER
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HSRMEE
(o17%3A208~2018%38198) | 0001067952

FoRHER
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BT 1 R WA
(018E7RIB~2010eRRm | 0001964137

EERRE
(2013%98248~2019%65%8) | 0005871213

2013 24 2014 19 2.94

2014 20 2015 19 6.37

2015 20 2016 19 7.70
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2017 20 2018 19 10.68

2018 20 2019 19 17.29
100x
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i)

4)
5,322,890,213 481,141,558 4,841,748,655
2013 24 2014 19 (3,271,402,725) (481,141,558)|  (2,790,261,167)
4,011,610,366 3,504,448,277 5,348,910,744
2014 20 2015 19 (3,878,082,428)|  (3,004,448,277)| (3,663,895,318)
9,413,703,964 6,892,288,269 7,870,326,439
2015 20 2016 19 (9,019,260,444)| (5,102,829,323)| (7,580,326,439)
10,032,107,359 4,461,388,140 13,441,045,658
2016 20 2017 19 (10,020,091,799)|  (4,186,388,140)| (13,414,030,098)
24,322,316,835 10,394,639,996 27,368,722,497
2017 20 2018 19 (24,319,332,225)| (10,394,639,996)| (27,338,722,327)
38,681,929,759 19,040,728,343 47,009,923,913
2018 20 2019 19 (38,676,465,773)| (19,040,728,343)| (46,974,459,757)
1
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(1) 2019 19
2019 19
2019
348,800,311 ) 3 359,232,539 6,714,056, 154
6 55,902,243 1,044,812,922
9 10 74,500,000 1,392,405,000
1,757,193 32,841,937
5,093,256 95,192,955
496,485,231 9,279,308,967
20,000,000 373,800,000
632,571 11,822,752
4,926,835 92,082,546
8 902,525 16,868,192
26,461,931 494,573,490
11 470,023,300 8,784,735,477

47,009,923,913
5 11 0.01 0.19
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: 2019

2019 19
2019

17,668,613 330,226,377

47,798,283 893,349,909

65,466,896 1,223,576,286

7 8 995,247 18,601,166

7 8 1,824,619 34,102,129

7 8 82,937 1,550,093

8 430,904 8,053,596

8 398,099 7,440,470

7 8 132,700 2,480,163

8 1,491,488 27,875,911

178,823 3,342,202

712,811 13,322,438

6,247,628 116,768,167

59,219,268 1,106,808,119

(170,569) (3,187,935)

59,048,699 1,103,620,184
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2019 19
2019
273,535,543 5,112,379,299
59,048,699 1,103,620,184
(58,972,957) (1,102,204,566)
386,819,298 7,229,652,680
(190,407, 283) (3,558,712,119)
470,023,300 8,784,735,477
2019 19
2019
59,048,699 1,103,620,184
(1,315,653, 885) (24,589,571,111)
(201,000,000) (3,756,690,000)
1,174,456,190 21,950,586,191

146,500,000 2,738,085,000
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170,569
(3,601,036)
464,292

0000000000000000000
3,187,935

(67,303, 363)
8,677,617

(139,615,171)

(2,609,407,546)

5 341,897,777
5 (190,008,787)
5 (12,081,074)

6,390,069,452
(3,551,264,229)
(225,795,273)

139,807,916

2,613,009,950

192,745 3,602,404
55,709,498 1,041,210,518
55,902,243 1,044,812,922
2019 19
2019
0.01 0.19
0.01 0.19
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1,124,622
2019 19 2019
2019
284,606,871 99,027,563
2019 19
)
Ak Yatirim Menkul Deg As 0% 28-Mar-19 12,187,890 12,442,574 2.65
Akbank Tas 0% 22-Mar-19 34,315,750 34,960,900 7.44
Alternatifhank As 0% 10-Apr-19 25,234,531 26,167,781 5.57
Qnb Finansbank As Turkey 0% 12-Jul-19 32,402,476 32,773,550 6.97
Tc Ziraat Bankasi As 0% 22-Mar-19 33,634,519 34,959,467 7.44
Turkey Govt Bond 11.1% 15-May-19 49,081,500 52,603,880 11.19
Turkey Govt Bond 13% 13-Nov19 32,760,000 33,240,528 7.07
Turkiye Is Bankasi As 0% 03-Apr-19 34,083,000 34,726,851 7.39
Turkiye Vakiflar Bankasi 0% 05-Apr-19 28,759,050 29,716,355 6.32
Yapi Kredi Yat Men 0% 03-Apr-19 13,087,140 13,087,140 2.78
Yapi Kredi Yat Menkul 0% 20-Mar-19 19,341,555 20,000,000 4.26
Yapi Ve Kredi Bankasi As 0% 12-Apr-19 33,912,900 34,553,513 7.35
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348,800,311 359,232,539 76.43
TRT210721T11 28-Mar-19 22.75% AKM 4,000,000 4,000,000 0.85
TRT210721T11 28-Mar-19 22.95% AKM 20,000,000 20,000,000 4.26
TRT210721T11 28-Mar-19 23.69% AKM 50,500,000 50,500,000 10.74
74,500,000 74,500,000 15.85
FDTRY Akbank Malta 19% 26-Mar-19 55,000,000 55,000,000 11.70

55,000,000 55,000,000 11.70
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Turkish Lira Money Market Fund

Statement of Assets and Liabilities
As at March 19, 2019

2019
Note TRY
Assets
Investment in debt securities, at fair value

(Cost: TRY 348,800,311} i} 359,232,539
Cash and cash equivalents 6 35,902,243
Receivables from repurchase agreements 9.10 74,500,000
Subscriptions receivable 1,757,193
Interest receivable _ 5083256
Total Assets 496,485,231
Liabilities

Payable for investments purchased 20,000,000
Redemptions payable 632,371
Distributions pavable 4,925,835
Ouher payables 5 902,525
Total Liabilities 26,461,931
Met Assets 1 470,023,300
et Asset Value (*NAV™) per Unit

(hased on 47,009,923,913 units outstanding) 311 TRY0.01

The accompanying noles and schedules form an integral part of these financial statements.

Signed on behalf of the Trustee:

Cor oewy [/
Date: & rq {H‘
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Turkish Lira Money Market Fund

Statement of Operations
For the vear ended March 19, 2019

Note
[nvestment income
Interest income
Accretion of acquisition discount
Expenses
Investment Manager fees 7.8
Sub-Investment Manager fees 7.8
Manager fees 78
Administration fees 8
Custodian fees 8
Trusiee fees 7.8
Distributors and Agent Company fees 8
Audit fees

Other fees and expenses

Net investment income
MNet realized loss on investments

Net increase in Net Assets resulting from operations

Ooooooooooooooooooad

2019
TRY

17.668.613
47,795,283

635,460,896

995,247
1.824.619
82,937
430,904
398,099
132,700
1.491_ 488
178,823
712.811

6.247.628

59,219,268

(1 70,569)

59,048,699

The accompanying notes and schedules form an integral part of these linancial statements.
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Turkish Lira Money Market Fund

Statement of Changes in Net Assets
For the yvear ended March 19. 2019

2019

TRY
Net Assets at beginning of year 273,535,543
Met increase in Net Assets resulting from operations 39,048 699
Distributions to Unitholders (58.972.957)
Units issued 3B6,819,298
Units redeemed (190.407.283)
Net Assets at end of vear 470,023,300

The accompanying notes and schedules form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Turkish Lira Money Market Fund

Statement of Cash Flows
For the vear ended March 19. 2019

Note

Cash flows from operating activifies
Net increase in Net Assets resulting from operations

Adjustments to reconcile net increase in Net Assets
resulting from operations to net cash used in operating activities;

Payments for purchase of debt securities

Payments for purchase of repurchase agreements
Proceeds from sale of debt securities

Proceeds from setilement of repurchase agreements
MNet realized loss on investments

Increase in interest receivable

Increase in other pavables

Met cash used in operating activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from issuance of Unils
Payments for redemption of Units
Instributions

A Lh LA

MNet cash provided by financing activities

MNet increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of vear

2019
TRY

39,048,699

(1.315.653.885)

(201,000,000)
1.174.456.190
146,500,000
170,569

(3.601,036)
464.292

(139.615.171)

341,897,777
(190,008.787)

(12.081.074)

192,745
35,709,498

55,902,243

The accompanyving notes and schedules form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Turkish Lira Money Market Fund

Financial Highlights
For the vear ended March 19, 2019

29
TRY
Per Unit operating performance:
NAV per Unit, beginning of vear 0.01
Income from investment operations (B)
Net mvestment income -
Met realized and change in unrealized gain -
Total income from investment operations -
WAV per Unit, end of yvear (.01
Ratios/supplemental daia:
Ratio of total expenses to average Net Assets (A) (1.83)%
Ratio of net investment income to average Net Assets (A) 17.32%
Total Return (A) -

{A) Total return is calculated based on the change in NAV during the vear. Expense ratios and net
investiment income ratio are calculated based on the average Net Assets outstanding throughout the

vear, The financial highlights are reflected after all investment-related and operating expenses,

(B) Resulis vary based upon participation in certain invesiments, fee amrangements and timing of
capital transactions. Per Unit information is calculated based upon the monthly average Units
outstanding during the vear.

11
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Turkish Lira Money Market Fund

Notes to the Financial Statements
March 19, 2019

1. Description of the Trust

Turkish Lira Money Market Fund (the “Series Trust™) is a series trust of Multi Strategies Fund (the
“Trust™), The Trust is an open-ended umbrella unit trust constituted by a master trust deed dated June
10, 2013 and made between the Trustee and the Manager. The Trust has been constituted as an
umbrella unit trust under the Trusts Law of the Cayman Islands and registered under the Mutual Funds
Law of the Cayvman Islands on June 18, 2013, A separate porifolio or series trust can be created and
established to which assets and liabilities attributable to the relevant series trust will be applied. The
Master Trust Deed is governed by the laws of the Cayman Islands.

As at March 19, 2019 there were two series trusts of the Trust. UBP African Equity Fund and the
Series Trust. The Series Trust commenced operations on Sepltember 24, 2013, These financial
statements comprise only the accounts of the Series Trust,

The investment objective of the Series Trust is to preserve principal value and maintain a high degree
of liquidity while providing current income by mvesting in Turkish Lira denominated short term
financial instruments, including but not limited to government bonds, corporate bonds, certificates of
deposit, asset backed securities, bank deposits and repurchase and reverse repurchase agreements.

International Management Services Lid. (the “Manager™) is the Manager. Sompo Japan Nipponkoa
Asset Management Co., Ltd. (the “Investment Manager™) is the Investment Manager. Ak Portfdy
Yonetimi A.§. (the “Sub-Investment Manager™) is the Sub-Investment Manager and Sumitomo Mitsui
Trust (UK) Limited (the *Custodian™) is the Custodian. The administration of the Series Trust is
delegated to SMT Fund Services (Ireland) Limited (the *Administrator™).

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The financial statements are prepared in conformity with US generally accepted accounting principals
(“US GAAP™). The preparation of financial statements in conformity with US GAAP requires the
Manager to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. Actual results could differ from those estimates,

The financial statements have been prepared in Turkish Lira (“TRY™), which is the Series Trust’s
functional currency.

The Series Trust is considered an investment company under US GAAFP and follows the accounting
and reporting guidance applicable to investment companies in the Financial Accounting Standards
Board (“FASB™) Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC™) 946, Financial Services - Investment
Companies (“ASC 946"),

The Series Trust possesses the fundamental charactenistics of an investment company and all tvpical
characteristics of an investment company.

In the opinion of the Investment Manager, the Series Trust possesses the fundamental characteristics of
an investment company because the following conditions exist:

i. The Series Trust obtains funds from the investors and provides those investors with investment
management services.
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Turkish Lira Money Market Fund

Notes to the Financial Statements
March 19, 2019

(Continued)
2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

ii. The business purpose and only substantive activities, which were communicated to investors, are
investing solely for returns from capital appreciation and investment income.

iti. The Series Trust has identified exit strategies for the investments it holds for returns from capital
appreciation,

iv. The Series Trust does not have an objective of obtaining resulis or benefits other than capital
appreciation and investment income from its investments.

In the opinion of the Investment Manager, the Series Trust also possesses the typical characteristics of an
investiment Company.

i. The Series Trust holds more than one investment,

ii. The Series Trust is funded by multiple investors,

ili. The Series Trust has investors that hold a significant interest in the Series Trust and are not related to
the Investment Manager.

iv. Ownership in the Series Trust 15 represented by equity interests acquired through capital contributions.

v. The Sertes Trust manages and evaluates performance of investments on a fair value basis.

The significant accounting policies adopted by the Series Trust are as follows:

Valuation of investments

Investments consist of corporate bonds, government bonds, deposits and repurchase agreements. Debt
securities such as corporate bonds and government bonds with a remaining maturity of less than one year
are valued at fair value using an amortized cost technigue (i.e. at their acquisition cost as adjusted for the
amortization of premivm or accretion of discount) as the best estimate of Ffair value, The Manager,
through its delegates, continuously reviews the amortized cost method to ensure that investments are
stated at their fair market value. When the Series Trust purchases a financial asset and simultaneously
enters into an agreement to resell the asset at a fixed price on a future date (“repurchase agreement”™). the
arrangement is accounted for as a receivable (“receivables from repurchase agreements™). and the
underlving asset is noi recognized on the Series Trust's financial statements,

When the Series Trust sells a financial asset and simultaneously enters into an agreement to repurchase
the same asset at a fixed price on a future date, the agreement is accounted for as borrowings (“payables
under repurchase agreements™). and the underlying asset iz not derecognized m the Series Trust's
financial statements, Receivables and pavables from repurchase agreements are imtially measured at fair
value less incremental direct transaction costs, and subsequently measured at amortized cost, using the
effective interest method.

Investment transactions are accounted for on a trade date basis. At vear end, all investments are valued as
at March 135, 2019, due to March 18 and 19, 2019 being non-business dayvs in accordance with the Series
Trust's Offering Memorandum.

Realized gains and losses and movements i unrealized gains and losses are recognized in the Statement

of Operations and determined on a first-in-first-out basis. Movements in fair value are recorded in the
Statement of Operations al each valuation date.
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Turkish Lira Money Market Fund

Notes to the Financial Statements

March 19. 2019
{Continued)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes highly liquid investments, such as money markel funds, that are
readily convertible to known amounts of cash within 20 days from the date of purchase. All cash
balances are held at major banking and broker institutions.

Cash and other liquid assets are valued at their face value with coupon interest receivable accrued,
where applicable, to the end of the relevant day.

Investment Income
Interest income is accounted for on an effective yield basis. Discounts and premiums on securities are
amortized and accreted on the effective vield basis over the life of the respective securities,

Expenses
Expenses are accounted for on an accruals basis,

Foreign Exchange Transactions

Assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the closing rates of exchange
on March 15, 2019, due to March 18 and 19, 2019 being non-business days, with foreign currency
gains and losses reflected in the Statement of Operations. Purchases and sales of securities and income
and expenses are translated at the prevailing rate of exchange on the respective dates of such
transactions. Unrealized gains and losses are caleulated by comparing the Fair value of the investments
to the prices at which those assets were originally purchased.

The Series Trust does not isolate that portion of the results of operations resulting from changes in
foreign exchange rates on investments from the fluctuations arising from changes in the market prices
of securities. Such fluctuations are included in net realized loss on investments in the Statement of
Operations.

Receivables from Repurchase Agreements

Transactions involving repurchase agreements are treated as collateralized financing transactions and
are recorded at their contracted resell amounts. Interest on transactions 15 included in interest
receivable.

(Offsetting assets and liabilities

The Series Trust 15 required to disclose the impact of offsetiing assets and habilities represented in the
Statement of Assets and Liabilities to enable users of the financial statements to evaluate the effect or
potential effect of netting arrangemenis on 1is financial position for recognized asseis and liabilities.
These recognized assets and liabilities are financial instruments and derivative instruments that are
either subject to an enforceable master netting arrangement or similar agreement or meet the following
right of set-ofT criteria: the amounts owed by the Series Trust to another party are determinable, the
Series Trust has the right to set-off the amounts owed with the amounts owed by the other party, the
Series Trust intends to set-off, and the Series Trust™s right of set-ofT 15 enforceable at law,

Use of Estimates

Preparing financial statements in accordance with US GAAP requires management to make estimates
and assumptions in determining the reported amounts of assets and labilities, including fair value of
investments set out in Note 3. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

14
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Turkish Lira Money Market Fund

Notes to the Financial Statements
March 19, 2019

(Continued)
2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Taxation

The Series Trust is a Cayman Islands exempted Trust. Under the current laws of the Cayman Islands,
there are no income, estate, transfer, sale or other taxes pavable by the Series Trust. The Series Trust
trades stocks and securities for its own account and, as such, iz generally not subject to 1.8, tax on
such eamings (other than certain withholding taxes indicated below). The Investment Manager intends
to conduct the business of the Series Trust to the maximum extent practicable so that the Series Trust's
activities do not constitute a U8, trade or business. [nterest and other income realized by the Series
Trust from non-LU15. sources and capital gains realized on the sale of securities of non-U.S. issuers may
be subject to withholding and other taxes levied by the jurisdiction in which the income is sourced. In
accordance with the Trusts Law (2011 Revision), the Trust has received an undertaking exempting it
from all local taxes for a period of 30 vears from the date of creation of the Trust,

Accounting Standard Codification (“ASC™) 740, “Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes”,
clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes recognized in the Series Trust’s financial
statements. ASC 740 prescribes a recognition threshold and measurement attribute for the financial
statement recognition and measurement of a tax position taken or expected to be taken in a tax retumn.
ASC 740 requires that the enterprise determines whether it is more likely than not that a tax position
will be sustained upon examination, including resolution of any related appeals or litigation processes,
based on the technical merits of the position. In evaluating whether a tax position has met the more-
likely-than-not recognition threshold, the enterprise should presume that the position will be examined
bv the appropriate taxing authority that has full knowledge of all relevant information. A tax position
that meets the more=likely-than-not recognition threshold is measured to determine the amount of
benefit to recognize in the financial statements, The tax position is measured at the largest amount of
benefit that is greater than 50% likely of being realized upon settlement.

The Investment Manager has analysed the Series Trust's tax positions and has concluded that no
liability for unrecognized tax benefits should be recorded related to uncertain tax positions.
Furthermore, the Investment Manager is not aware of any tax positions for which it is reasonably
possible that the total amounts of unrecognized tax benefits will significantly change in the next
twelve months,

Guarantees and/or Indemnifications

In the normal course of business the Series Trust enters into contracts that contain a variety of
represemtations, which provide general imdemnifications. The Series Trust™s maximum exposure under
these arrangements is unknown, as this would invelve future claims that may be made against the
Series Trust that have not yet ocourred. However, based on experience, the Series Trust expects the
risk of loss to be remote.

Distributions

The Manager, through its delegates, declares distributions on each dealing day. The amount per Unit
distributed is a sum equal to the amount required to maintain the relevant NAV per Unit on each
dealing day a1t TRY0.01,

Classification of Redemptions

ASC 480, dcconnting for Certain Financial Instruments with Characteristics of Both Liabilities and
Fguity, recognizes redemptions as liabilities, when the amount requested in the redemption notice
becomes fixed. This generally may occur at the time of the receipt of the notice. or on the last dav of a
fiscal yvear, depending on the nature of the request. As a resull, redemplions paid after the end of the
vear, but based upon year end capital balance are reflected as redemptions payable at March 19, 2019,

15
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Turkish Lira Money Market Fund

Notes to the Financial Statements

March 19. 2019
{Continued)

3. Fair Value Measurements

Financial instruments are recorded at fair value. Fair value is defined as the price that would be
received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability (i.e., the “exit price™) in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date.

A fair value hierarchy of inputs is used in measuring fair value that maximizes the use of observable
inputs and minimizes the use of unobservable inputs by requiring that the most observable inputs be
used when available. Observable mputs are those that market participants would use in pricing the
assel or liability based on market data obtained from sources independent of the Series Trust.
Unobservable inputs reflect the Series Trust’s assumptions about the inputs market participants would
use in pricing the asset or liability developed based on the best information available in the
circumstances,

The fair value hierarchy is categorized into three levels based on the inputs as follows:

- Level 1 — Inputs that reflect unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities that the Series Trust has the ability to access at the measurement date;

- Level 2 — Inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability either directly or
indirectly, mcluding inputs in markets that are not considered to be active;

- Level 3 - Inputs that are unobservable.

Inputs are used in applving the various valuation techniques and broadly refer to the assumptions that
market participants use to make valuation decisions, including assumptions about risk. A financial
instrument s level within the fair value hierarchy is based on the lowest level of any input that is
significant to the fair value measurement. The Manager considers observable data to be that market
data which is readily available. regularly distributed or updated, reliable and verifiable, not proprietary
and provided by independent sources that are actively involved in the relevamt market. The
categorization of a financial instrument within the hierarchy is based upon the pricing transparency of
the instrument and does not necessarily correspond to the Manager™s perceived risk of that instrumennt.

Investments whose values are based on quoted market prices in active markets are classified within
Level 1. The Series Trust did not hold any Level 1 investments at March 19, 2019,

Investments that trade in markets that are not considerad to be active, but are valued based on quoted
market prices, dealer gquotations or altemative pricing sources supported by observable inpuls are
classified within Level 2. As Level 2 investments include positions that are not traded in active
markets and/or are subject to transfer restrictions, valuations may be adjusted to reflect illiquidity
and/or non-transferability, which are generally based on available market information. Debt securities
are valued using an amontized cost technigque and are classified as Level 2.

16
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Turkish Lira Money Market Fund

Notes to the Financial Statements

March 19. 2019
{Continued)

3. Fair Value Measurements {continued)

Investments classified within Level 3 have significanmt unobservable inputs, as they trade infrequently
or not at all. The Series Trust did not hold any Level 3 investments at March 19, 2019,

The following table presents the investments of the Series Trust measured at Fair value within the fair
valuation hierarchy as of March 19, 201%:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
TRY TRY TRY TRY
Assets
Debt securities - 359,232,539 - 359,232,539
Receivables from repurchase
agreements - T, 500,000 - 74,500,000
- 433,732,539 - 433,732,539

All securities are classified as Level 2. There were no significant transfers of assets between levels
during the year,

Repurchase agreements involve the purchase of a security from a counterparty, with an obligation of
the Series Trust to resell the security to the counterparty at a contracted price on maturity. In
connection with its repurchase agreements, it is the Series Trust’s policy that its Custodian, acting on
behalf of the Series Trust, take procession of the underlving collateral securities. the fair valve of
which, at all times, to be least 110% of the principal amount of the repurchase agreements, including
accrued interest. IF the counterparty defaults under repurchase agreements, and the fair value of the
collateral declines. the realization of the collateral by the Series Trust may be delayed or limited.

At March 19, 2019, the Series Trust received collateral consisting of government bonds, with a fair
value of TRY®3. 778,435 for its repurchase agreements. The Series Trust i1s not permitted to sell or
repledze collateral received in connection with its repurchase agreements.

4. Financial Instruments and Related Risks
The main risks arising from the Series Trust's financial instruments can be summarized as follows;

Marker Risk

The Statement of Assets and Liabilities as of March 19. 2019, includes the fair value of the contractual
commitment arising from debt securities and repurchase agreements owned by the Series Trust. These
investments involve exposure to market risk.

The value of the Series Trust™s financial instruments will fluctuate as a result of changes in market
prices caused by factors other than interest rates or foreign currency movement,

Interest Rate Risk

Increases in interest rates tvpically lower the present value of the Series Trust’s future earnings stream,
Since the market price of a security changes continuously based upon the investors™ collective
perceptions of future earmings, security prices will generally decline when investors anticipate or
experience rising interest rates,

17
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Turkish Lira Money Market Fund

Notes to the Financial Statements

March 19, 2019
(Continued)

4. Financial Instruments and Related Risks (continued)

Liguidity Risk
Liquidity risk represents the possibility that the Series Trust may not be able to rapidly adjust the size
of its Investment position in times of high volatility and financial stress at a reasonable price.

The main liability of the Series Trust is the redemption of anv Units that investors mayv wish to sell,
The Series Trust is exposed to daily cash redemptions of Redeemable Participating Units,

The liquidity of the Series Trust is a factor of the liquidity of the underlying investments, The Series
Trust's assets mainly consist of readily realizable securities. In the opinion of the Manager this should
enable the payvment of the Series Trust’s liabilities and any Unitholder’s redemption of Redeemable
Participating Units,

In the opinion of the Investment Manager, the majority of assets of the Series Trust held at March 19,
2019, can be liguidated within one month in normal circumstances,

Currency Hisk

Since all of the investments and cash and cash equivalents of the Series Trust are denominated in the
base currency of the Series Trust, the Statement of Assets and Liabilities and Statement of Operations
will not be affected by cwrrency movements and as a resull, a sensitivity analysis has not been
performed.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is measured by the loss the Series Trust would record if its counterparties failed to perform
pursuant 1o the terms of their obligations to the Series Trust. The Trust will be exposed to eredit risk on
parties with whom it trades and will also bear the risk of setilement default. In particular, the Series
Trust is exposed to credit risk with Brown Brothers Harriman & Co. (“BBH & Co.™) (“the Sub-
Custodian™), which has a Fitch credit rating of A+ and Akbank Malta (Note 6) which has a Fitch credit
rating of’ A+,

The Series Trust invests in debt securities, Adverse changes in the financial condition of the issuer, or
in general economic conditions, or both, or an unanticipated rise in interest rates, may impair the
ability of the issuer to make payments of interest and principal. The inability of issuers 1o make timely
payments of interest and principal may affect the value of securities held for the account of the Series
Trust. In the absence of a liquid trading market for certain securities it may not be possible to establish
the fair value of such secunties in accordance with the valuation methodology of the Series Trust,
Furthermore, the credit risk of making such investments in emerging economies, generally tends to be
greater when compared o investing in developed countries.

As at March 19, 2019, the Series Trust invested in debt securities with the Tollowing credit quality:

Credit Rating

TRY Yo
A+ 82,130,325 22.86
AA* 277.102.214 77.14
Total 359,232,539 1UHLO0
¥ National long term rating
18
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Turkish Lira Money Market Fund

Notes to the Financial Statements

March 19. 2019
(Continued)

4. Financial Instruments and Related Risks (continued )

Credit Risk {continued)

Repurchase and reverse repurchase transactions may include risks associated with the difference
between the valuations of the legs of such repurchase or reverse repurchase transactions. The price of
the collateral recerved or lent in such a transaction may adversely affect the Series Trust. In the event
of the failure of the relevant counterparty, inaccurate pricing, illiquidity of the relevant market in
which the collateral is traded and market movements may materially and adversely affect the
investment performance of the Series Trust. These effects may include, bul are not limited to, a
sudden decrease in the NAV. delays in recovering cash, difficulties in realizing collateral and there
may be additional risks related to these effects.

The Trustee has appointed the Custodian, whose ultimate parent Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Holdings,
Inc has a JCR credit rating of AA-. The Custodian has in tum appointed the Sub-Custodian. Both the
cash & securities are ultimately held at the Sub-Custodian, with cash being held at the Sub-Custodian
as Banker.

The Series Trust's securities are maintained by the Sub-Custodian in segregated accounts, thus in the
event of insolvency or bankruptey of the Sub-Custodian, the Series Trust's assets are segregated. The
Series Trust will, however, be exposed 1o the eredit risk of the Sub-Custodian, or any depository used
by the Custodian or Sub-Custodian, in relation to the Series Trust’s cash. In the event of insolvency
or bankrupicy of the Sub-Custodian, the Series Trust will be treated as a general creditor of the Sub-
Custodian in relation to cash holdings of the Series Trust.

Amn investment universe which lists all the ratings of eligible securities that the Series Trust has traded
in is maintained. and monitored daily to record rating changes by Fitch. Any rating changes are
reported to the Investment Manager.

Bankruptey or msolvency of the Sub-Custodian may cause the Series Trust rights with respect 1o ils
investments in debt securities held by the bank to be delayed or limited.

5. Unit Capital

As a result of the ability to issue and redeem Units, the capital of the Series Trust can vary depending
on the demand for subscriptions and redemptions to/from the Series Trust. The minimum amount of
subscriptions or redemptions per Unitholder is one Unit and thereafter in one Unit increments.

Units are redeemable on each business day subject to the submission ol a repurchase notice by no
later than ®am {Dublin time) on the relevant business day or such other deadline as the Investment
Manager may determine at the NAV per unit prevailing at the close of business on the preceding
valuation day, failing which the repurchase request will be held over umtil the following dealing day
and Units will be redeemed at the repurchase price applicable for that dealing day.
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Turkish Lira Money Market Fund

Notes to the Financial Statements
March 19, 2019

(Continued)

5. Unit Capital (continued)

The movements in the number of Units issued during the vear ended March 19, 2019 are as follows:

Number of Units outstanding as at beginning of year

Number of Units 1ssued
Number of Units redeemed

Number of Units outstanding as at end of vear

Number of Units
27 368,722 497
38,681,929, 759

(19.040,728,343)

47,009,923,913

During the wear ended March 19, 2019 distributions of TRY38.972.957 were paid of which

TRY 43,670,594 was reinvested back into the Series Trust.

6. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at March 19, 2019, is comprised of cash at hand held with the Sub-Custodian
and deposits with maturities of 3 months or less held with Akbank Malta are as follows:

Cash at hand - BBH & Co.
Deposit - Akbank Malta

Total

7. Related Party Transactions

TRY
902,243
35.000,000

55,902,243

Parties are considered 1o be related if one party has the ability to control the other party or exercise
significant influence over the other party in making financial or operational decisions. In the opinion of
the Manager there were no transactions with related parties other than those in the normal course of
business. The Manager, Investment Manager, Sub-Investment Manager, Trustee and Akbank T.A.S.
which is the counterparty to the repurchase agreements and deposits and holds 35,404,156 Units in the
Series Trust, are deemed to be related to the Series Trust, The Series Trust has deposits of
TRY 55,000,000 with Akbank Malta (Note 6). Fees incurred with related parties during the vear are
disclosed in the Statement of Operations and in Note 8. Amounts payable to related parties at the vear

end are disclosed in the Statement of Assets and Liabilinies and in Note 8.

Two investors hold an investment of 28.03% and 14.23% in the Series Trust. As a result, any actions of

these related parties can materially impact the Series Trust.

8. Fees and Expenses

The Manager receives out of the assets of the Series Trust a fee at the rate of 0.025% per annum of the
NAV, accrued on and calculated as at cach valuation day and payable in US Dollars monthly in arrears,

subject to a minimum fee of TRY 40,000 per calendar vear.
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Turkish Lira Money Market Fund

Notes to the Financial Statements
March 19, 2019

(Continued)

8. Fees and Expenses (continued)

The Trustee receives out of the assets of the Series Trust a fee at the rate of (.04% per annum of the
NAV, accrued on and calculated as at each valuation day and payvable in Euro monthly in arrears,
subject to a minimum fee of TRY 43,000 per calendar vear.

The Investment Manager receives out of the assets of the Series Trust a fee at the rate of 0.30% per
annum of the NAVY, acerued on and calculated as at each valuation day and pavable in Japanese Yen
monthly in arrears.

The Sub-Investment Manager receives a fee at the rate of 0.55% per annum of the NAV, accerued on and
calculated as al each valuation day and pavable in TRY monthly in arrears.

The Administrator receives out of the assets of the Series Trust a fee al the rate of 0.08% per annum of
the NAV, acerued on and caleulated as at each valuation day and pavable in Euro monthly in arrears,
subject to a minimum fee of TRYE900 per month. The Administrator will also be paid an audit
assistance fee of an amount equivalent in Euro to TRY 8,900, In addition, the Administrator will also be
paid a fee of TRY 270 in respect of cach new Unitholder and a fee of TRY 45 for cach update of the
Register that it is required to undertake. The Administrator is also reimbursed for any reasonable out-of-
pockel expenses necessarily incurred in the performance of its duties,

The Custodian receives out of the assets of the Series Trust a fee at the rate of 0.12% per annum of the
NAV, accrued on and calculated as at each valuation day and pavable in US Dollars monthly in arrears,
subject to a minimum fee in US Dollars of an amount equivalent to TRYZ2.100 per month. The
Custodian 1s also reimbursed for any reasonable out-of-pocket expenses necessarily incurred in the
performance of its duties,

The distributors receive out of the assets of the Series Trust a fee ot the rate of 0.35% per anmum of the
NAV, accrued on and calculated as at each valuation day and pavable in Japanese Yen monthly in
arrears, As at vear end, there were 22 distinbutors to the Series Trust.

The Agent Company receives oul of the assets of the Series Trust a fee at the rate of 0.10% per annum
of the NAV, accrued on and calculated as at each valuation day and payvable in Japanese Yen monthly in
arrears,

The fees payable as at March 19, 2019 are as follows:

TRY

Investment Manager fees T3.435
Sub-Investment Manager fees 134,632
Manager fees 6,120
Administration fees 43.623
Custodian fees 29,374
Trustee fees 9.791
Distributors and Agent Company ecs 109,800
Audit fees 125,619
Other fees and expenses 370,131
2,525
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(Continued)
9. Receivables from Repurchase Agreements

Repurchasze agreements involve the purchase of securities by the Series Trust with an agreement by the
Series Trust to resell the secunities at an agreed upon price, date and interest payment. Repurchase
agreements involve the credit risk that the counterparty to the repurchase agreement may default. As at
March 19, 2019, securities purchased under agreements to resell are collateralized principally by
government bonds and Turkish ageney bonds in the amount of TRY 74, 500,000,

The Series Trust monitors collateral market values relative to the amounis due under the agreements,
including accrued interest, throughout the lives of the agreements, and when necessary, requires transfer
of cash or securities in order to manage exposure and hguidity, In connection with such agreements, if
the counterparty defaulis or enters an insolvency proceeding, realization or retumn of the collateral to the
Series Trust may be delayved or imited,

As at March 19, 2019, the securities purchased under agreements 1o resell mature on or before March
28, 2019 and the interest applicable is 22.75%, 22.95% and 23.69%,

10. Offsetting assets and liabilities

As of March 19, 2019, the Series Trust holds repurchase agreements that are eligible for offset in the
Statement of Assets and Liabilities. The repurchase arrangement allows the Series Trust to net any
receivables against collateral held.

The table below provides disclosure regarding the potential effect of offsetting of recognized assels
presented in the Statement of Assets and Liabilities and Statement of Changes in Net Assets:

Related amounts not offset in the

2019 Statement of Assets and Liabilities
Gross  Net Amounts
Amounts of Recognized
Gross (Mfset in the Assets
Amounts Statement  Presented in
of of Changes the Statement Financial
Recognized in Net of Changes in Financial Collateral Net
Deseription Assets Assets Net Assets  Instroments Received (a) amount
TRY TRY TRY TRY TRY TRY
Receivables
from
Repurchase
Agreements 74,500,000 - 74,500,000 - (74, 500,000) -
74,500,000 - 74,500,000 - (74,500,000 -

(a) Amounts related to master netting agreements and collateral agreements determined by the Series
Trust to be legally enforceable i the evemt of any default. but certain other criteria are not met in
accordance with applicable offsetting accounting guidance. ‘The collateral amounts may exceed the
related net amounts of financial assets and liabilities presented in the Statement of Assets and Liabilities,
il this s the case, the total amount reported 15 limited to net amounts of financial assets and liabilities
with that counterparty.

As at March 19, 2019, there are no recognized liabilities presented in the Statement of Assels and
Liabilities that are subject to offsetling,
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(Continued)

11. Reconciliation of the Dealing NAV to NAV per Financial Statements

12.

29

TRY
Reported NAV 468,974,628
Trade date adjustment 1,124,622
Establishment costs written off (343.418)
Establishment costs amortized in reported NAV 467,468
NAV attributable to Holders of Units per Financial Statements 470,023,300
Number of Units per Reported NAY 46.897.461,708
Trade date adjustment 112,462,205
Number of Units per Financial Statements 47.009,923,913
Reported NAVY per Unit 0.01
NAYV per Unit per Financial Statements 0.01

The establishment costs, estimated at TRY 343,418 were fully charged in the Statement of Operations in
the period in which they were incwrred. For the purpose of caleulating the Reported NAY per Unit used
for dealing purposes, these establishment costs relating to the creation of the Series Trust are amortized
over the first seven accounting periods of the Series Trust or such other period as the Manager may
determine and in such manner as the Manager in its absolute discretion deems fair in accordance with
the Offering Memorandum.

For Unitholder dealing purposes, transactions are accounted for on a trade date plus 1 business day
basis. For financial reporting purposes, transactions are accounted for on a trade date basis. Transactions
occwrring between close of business on the last trade date and the financial reporting vear end date have
required an adjustment of TRY 1,124,622,

Subsequent Events

The Manager has performed a subsequent review from March 19, 2019 through to September 9, 2019
being the date that the financial statements were available to be issued. Through September 9, 2019
investors subscribed TRY 294,939 945 into the Series Trust and redeemed TRY 102,304,697 capital from

the Series Trust

The Manager concluded that there were no other subsequent events which required additional disclosure
in these financial statements,
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Schedule of Investments
March 19, 2019

Fair

Cost Value %o of
Debt Securities TRY TRY NAY
Turkey
Ak Yatirum Menkul Deg As 0% 28-Mar-19 12,187,890 12,442,574 265
Akbank Tas 0% 22-Mar-19 34,315,750 34.960.900 7.44
Altematifbank As 0% 10-Apr-19 23,234,531 26.167.781 5.57
Onb Finansbank As Turkey 0% 12-Jul-19 32,402,476 32,773,550 6.97
Te Ziraal Bankasi As 0% 22-Mar-19 33.634.519 34.959.467 7.44
Turkey Govt Bond 11.1% 15-May-19 49,081,500 52.603.880 11.19
Turkey Govt Bond 13% 13-Nov19 32,760,000 33,240,528 7.07
Turkive Is Bankasi As 0% 03-Apr-19 34.083.000 34,726,851 7.39
Turkive Vakiflar Bankasi (% 03-Apr-19 28,759,050 29,716,355 6.32
Yapi Kredi Yat Men 0% 03-Apr-19 13,087,140 13.087.140 2.78
Yapi Kredi Yat Menkul 0% 20-Mar-19 19.341,555 20.000.000 4.26
Yapi Ve Kredi Bankasi As (%0 12-Apr-19 33.912.900 34,553,513 7.35
Investments in Debt Securities, at fair value 348,800,311 359,232,539 76.43
Receivable from Repurchase Agreements
Malta
TRT210721T11 28-Mar-19 22.75% AKM 4,000,000 4,000,000 0.85
TRT210721T11 28-Mar-19 22.95% AKM 20,000,000 20.000.000 4.26
TRT210721T11 28-Mar-19 23.69% AKM 50,500,000 S0.500.000 10.74
Total Receivables from Repurchase Agreements T4, 500,(HK) 74,500, (40 15.85
Deposits (less than 3 months)
Malta
FDTRY Akbank Malta 19% 26-Mar-19 55.000.000 35.000.000 11.70
Total Deposits (less than 3 months) 55,000,004 55,000,000 11.70
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(2 2018 19
2018 19
2018
215,217,997 ) 3 218,205,413 4,078,259,169
6 55,709,498 1,041,210,518
506,266 9,462,112
1,492,220 27,889,592
275,913,397 5,156,821,390
234,075 4,374,862
1,705,546 31,876,655
8 438,233 8,190,575
2,377,854 44,442,001
10 273,535,543 5,112,379,299
27,368,722,497
5 10 0.01 0.19

1 2018 12
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2018 19
2018

6,316,189 118,049,572

21,090,238 394,176,548

27,406,427 512,226,121

78 642,297 12,004,531

7 8 1,177,541 22,008,241

7 8 53,732 1,004,251

8 321,440 6,007,714

8 256,919 4,801,816

7 8 85,640 1,600,612

8 962,429 17,987,798

8 104,901 1,960,600

447,472 8,363,252

4,052,371 75,738,814

23,354,056 436,487,307

(73,384) (1,371,547)

23,280,672 435,115,760
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2018 19
2018
134,183,224 2,507,884,457
23,280,672 435,115,760
(23,205,121) (433,703,711)
243,223,168 4,545,841,010
(103,946, 400) (1,942,758,216)
273,535,543 5,112,379,299
2018 19
2018
23,280,672 435,115,760
(777,450,564) (14,530,551,041)
667,552,551 12,476,557,178
73,384 1,371,547
(1,100,155) (20,561,897)

158,773 2,967,467
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(87,485,339)

(1,635,100,986)

5 225,642,177
(103,732,810)
5 (4,911,897)

4,217,252,288
(1,938,766,219)
(91,803, 355)

116,997,470

2,186,682,714

29,512,131 551,581,728
26,197,367 489,628,789
55,709,498 1,041,210,518
5,216,035 97,487,694
2018 19
2018
0.01 0.19
0.01 0.19
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2018 19
2018 19
1 2 3
218,205,413 218,205,413
218,205,413 218,205,413

2018 19
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24,044,622 11.02
194,160,791 88.98
218,205,413 100.00
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(10,394,639, 996)

27,368,722,497
2018 19 23,205,121 17,220,230
2018 19
- 709,498
- 55,000,000
55,709,498
2018 19
30,000,170
55,000,000
2481 15.51
0.025
40,000
0.04

43,000
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3,539
32,530
16,989
5,663
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99,780
438,233
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19

2018

273,415,048
272,191
(543,418)
391,722
273,535,543

27,341,503,382
27,219,115
27,368,722,497
0.01

0.01
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Turkish Lira Money Market Fund

Statement of Assets and Liabilities
As at March 19, 2018

2018

Note TRY
Assels
Investment in debd securities, at fair value
(Cost: TRY215,217,997) 3 218,205.413
Cash and cash equivalents G 33,709,498
Subscriptions receivable 306.266
Interest receivable 1,492,220
Toial Assels 275,913,397
Liabilities
Redemptions payable 234073
Dhstributions payabiv [.705, 546
Other payables 8 438,233
Tofal Liabilities 2,377,854
Mol Assels 1o 273,535,543
Net Asset Value (“NAV*) per Unit
(based on 27,368,722,497 units oulstanding) 5,10 TRY(.01

The accompanying notes and schedules form an integral part of these (inancial statements.

Signed on behalf of the Trustee:

Ctert (Gt Canoll

Date:sgprermted 12, Loi%

108/218



EDINETOOOO
o = 2573
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Turkish Lira Money Market Fund

Statement of Operations
For the vear ended March 19, 2018
2018
Note TRY
Investment income
Interest income 6,316,189
Accretion of acquisition discount 21,090,238
27406427
Expenses
Investment Manager fees 7.8 642,297
Sub-Investment Manager fees 7.8 1,177,541
Manager fees 7.8 53,732
Administration fees 8 321,440
Custodian fees 8 256,919
Trustee fees 7.8 85,640
Distributor and Agent Company fees 8 962,429
Audit fees 8 104,901
Other expenses 447472
4,052,371
Net investment income 23,354,056
Net realized loss on investments (73,384)
Net increase in Net Assets resulting from operations 23,280,672

The accompanying notes and schedules form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Turkish Lira Money Market Fund

Statement of Changes in Net Assets
For the year ended March 19, 2018

2018

TRY
Net Assets at beginning of year 134,183,224
Net increase in Net Assets resulting from operations 23,280,672
Distributions to Unitholders (23,205,121)
Units issued 243,223,168
Units redeemed (103,946,400)
Net Assets at end of year 273,535,543

The accompanying notes and schedules form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Turkish Lira Money Market Fund

Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended March 19, 2018

2018

MNote TRY
Cash flows from operating activities
Net increase in Net Assets resulting from operations 23,280,672
Adjustments to reconcile net increase in Net Assets
resulting from operations to net cash used in operating activities:
Payments for purchase of debt securities (777,450,564)
Proceeds from sale of debt securities 667,552,551
Met realized loss on investments 73,384
Increase in interest receivable (1,100,155)

Increase in other payables 158,773

Wet cash used in operating activities (87,485,339)
Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from issuance of Units 5 225,642,177
Payments for redemption of Units (103,732,810)
Distributions 5 {(4,911,897)
Met cash provided by financing activities 116,997,470
Net increase in cash and cash egquivalents 29.512,131
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 26,197,367
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 55,700,498

Supplementary information:
Interest received 5,216,035

The accompanying notes and schedules form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Turkish Lira Money Market Fund

Financial Highlights
For the year ended March 19, 2018

2018
TRY
Per Unit operating performance:
NAV per Unit, beginning of year 0.01
Income from investment operations (B)
Met investment income -
Net realized and change in unrealized gain -
Total income from investment operations -
MNAV per Unit, end of year 0.01
Ratios/supplemental data;
Ratio of total expenses to average Net Assets (A) (1.85)%
Ratio of net investment income to average MNet Assets (A) 10.64%
Total Return (A) -

(A) Total retum is calculated based on the change in NAV during the year. Expense ratios and net
investment income ratio are calculated based on the average Net Assets outstanding throughout the
year. The financial highlights are reflected after all investment-related and operating expenses.

(B} Results vary based upon participation in certain investments, fee arrangements and timing of
capital transactions. Per Unit information is calculated based upon the monthly average Units
outstanding during the vear.
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Turkish Lira Money Market Fund

Notes to the Financial Statements
March 19, 2018

1. Deseription of the Trust

Turkish Lira Money Market Fund (the “Series Trust”™) is a series trust of Multi Strategies Fund (the
*Trust™). The Trust is an open-ended umbrella unit trust constituted by a master trust deed dated June
10, 2013 and made between the Trustee and the Manager. The Trust has been constituted as an
umbrella unit trust under the Trusts Law of the Cayman Islands and registered under the Mutual Funds
Law of the Cayman Islands on June 18, 2013. A separate portfolio or series trust can be created and
established to which assets and liabilities attributable to the relevant series trust will be applied, The
Master Trust Deed is governed by the laws of the Cayman Islands.

The investment objective of the Series Trust is to preserve principal value and maintain a high degree
of liquidity while providing current income by investing in Turkish Lira denominated short term
financial instruments, including but not limited to government bonds, corporate bonds, certificates of
deposit, asset backed securities, bank deposits and repurchase and reverse repurchase agreements.

International Management Services Ltd. (the “Manager™) is the Manager, Sompo Japan Nipponkoa
Asset Management Co., Ltd. (the “Investment Manager™) is the Investment Manager, Ak Portfoy
Yionetimi A.S. (the “Sub-Investment Manager”™) is the Sub-Investment Manager and Sumitomo Mitsui
Trust (UK) Limited (the “Custodian™) is the Custodian. The administration of the Series Trust is
delegated to SMT Fund Services (Ireland) Limited {the “Administrator™).

1, Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The financial statements are prepared in conformity with US generally accepted accounting principals
("US GAAP”). The preparation of financial statements in conformity with US GAAP requires the
Manager to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

The financial statements have been prepared in Turkish Lira (“TRY™), which is the Series Trust's
functional currency.

The Series Trust is considered an investment company under US GAAP and follows the accounting
and reporting guidance applicable to investment companies in the Financial Accounting Standards
Board (“FASB™) Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC™) 946, Financial Services - Investment
Companies (“ASC 946™).

The Series Trust possesses the fundamental characteristics of an investment company and all typical
characteristics of an investment company, either directly or indirectly as a result of the overall
structure with the Series Trust,

In the opinion of the Investment Manager, the Series Trust possesses the fundamental characteristics of
an investment company because the following conditions exist:

i. The Series Trust obtains funds from the investors and provides those investors with investment
management services,

ii. The business purpose and only substantive activities, which were communicated to investors, are
investing solely for returns from capital appreciation and investment income.

iii. The Series Trust has identified exit strategies for the investments it holds for returns from capital
appreciation.
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Turkish Lira Money Market Fund

Notes to the Financial Statements

March 19, 2018
(Continued)

2, Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

iv. The Series Trust does not have an objective of obtaining results or benefits other than capital
appreciation and investment income from their investments.

In the opinion of the Investment Manager, the Series Trust also possesses the typical characteristics of
an Investment company:

i. The Series Trust holds more than one investment.

ii. The Series Trust is funded by multiple investors.

iii. The Series Trust has investors that hold a significant interest in the Series Trust and are not related
to the Investment Manager.

iv. Ownership in the Series Trust is represented by equity interests acquired through capital
contributions.

v. The Series Trust manages and evaluates performance of investments on a fair value basis.

The significant accounting policies adopted by the Series Trust are as follows:

Valuation of investments

Investments consist of corporate bonds, government bonds and deposits. Debt securities such as
corporate bonds and government bonds with a remaining maturity of less than one year are valued at
fair value using an amortized cost technique (i.e. at their acquisition cost as adjusted for the
amortization of premium or accretion of discount) as the best estimate of fair value. The Manager,
through its delegates, continuously reviews the amortized cost method to ensure that investments are
stated at their fair market value.

[nvestment transactions are accounted for on a trade date basis. At year end, all investments are valued
as at March 16, 2018, due to March 19, 2018 being a non-business day in accordance with the Series
Trust’s Offering Memorandum.

Realized gains and losses and movements in unrealized gains and losses are recognized in the
Statement of Operations and determined on a first-in-first-out basis. Movements in fair value are
recorded in the Statement of Ciperations at each valuation date.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes highly liquid investments, such as money market funds, that are
readily convertible to known amounts of cash within 90 days from the date of purchase. All cash
balances are held at major banking and broker institutions.

Cash and other liquid assets are valued at their face value with coupon interest receivable accrued,
where applicable, to the end of the relevant day.

13
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Turkish Lira Money Market Fund
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2, Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Investment Income
Interest income is accounted for on an effective yield basis. Discounts and premiums on securities are
amortized and accreted on the effective yield basis over the life of the respective securities.

Expenses
Expenses are accounted for on an accruals basis.

Foreign Exchange Transactions

Assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the closing rates of exchange
on March 16, 2018, due to March 19, 2018 being a non-business day, with foreign currency gains and
losses reflected in the Statement of Operations. Purchases and sales of securities and income and
expenses are translated at the prevailing rate of exchange on the respective dates of such transactions.
Unrealized gains and losses are calculated by comparing the fair value of the investments to the prices
at which those assets were originally purchased.

The Series Trust does not isolate that portion of the results of operations resulting from changes in
foreign exchange rates on investments from the fluctuations arising from changes in the market prices
of securities. Such fluctuations are included in net realized loss on investments in the Statement of
Operations.

Use of Estimates

Preparing financial statements in accordance with US GAAP requires management to make estimates
and assumptions in determining the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, including fair value of
investments set out in note 3. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Taxation

The Series Trust is a Cayman [slands exempted Trust. Under the current laws of the Cayman Islands,
there are no income, estate, transfer, sale or other taxes payable by the Series Trust. The Series Trust
trades stocks and securities for its own account and, as such, is generally not subject to U.S. tax on such
earnings (other than certain withholding taxes indicated below). The Investment Manager intends to
conduct the business of the Series Trust to the maximum extent practicable so that the Series Trust’s
activities do not constitute a U.S. trade or business. Interest and other income realized by the Series
Trust from non-U.S. sources and capital gains realized on the sale of securities of non-U.S. issuers may
be subject to withholding and other taxes levied by the jurisdiction in which the income is sourced. In
accordance with the Trusts Law (2011 Revision), the Trust has received an undertaking exempting it
from all local taxes for a period of 50 years from the date of creation of the Trust.

115/218



EDINETOOOO
o = 2573
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Turkish Lira Money Market Fund

Notes to the Financial Statements
March 19, 2018

{Continued)

2, Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Taxation (continued)

Accounting Standard Codification (*ASC™) 740, “Accounting for Uncertzinty in Income Taxes”,
clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes recognized in the Series Trust’s financial
statements. ASC 740 prescribes a recognition threshold and measurement attribute for the financial
statement recognition and measurement of a tax position taken or expected to be taken in a tax return.
ASC 740 requires that the enterprize determines whether it is more likely than not that a tax position
will be sustained upon examination, including resolution of any related appeals or litigation processes,
based on the technical merits of the position. In evaluating whether a tax position has met the more-
likely-than-not recognition threshold, the enterprize should presume that the position will be examined
by the appropriate taxing authority that has full knowledge of all relevant information. A tax position
that meets the more-likely-than-not recognition threshold is measured to determine the amount of
benefit to recognize in the financial statements. The tax position is measured at the largest amount of
benefit that is greater than 50% likely of being realized upon settlement.

The Investment Manager has analysed the Series Trust’s tax positions and has concluded that no
liability for unrecognized tax benefits should be recorded related to uncertain tax positions.
Furthermore, the Investment Manager is not aware of any tax positions for which it is reasonably
possible that the total amounts of unrecognized tax benefits will significantly change in the next
twelve months.

Guarantees and/or Indemnifications

In the normal course of business the Series Trust enters into contracts that contain a variety of
representations, which provide general indemnifications. The Series Trust’s maximum exposure under
these arrangements is unknown, as this would involve future claims that may be made against the
Series Trust that have not yet occurred. However, based on experience, the Series Trust expects the
risk of loss to be remote.

Distributions )

The Manager, through its delegates, declares distributions on each dealing day. The amount per Unit
distributed is a sum equal to the amount required to maintain the relevant NAV per Unit on each
dealing day at TRY0.01.

Classification of Redemptions

ASC 480, Aeceounting for Certain Financial Instruments with Characteristics of Both Liabilities and
Egquiry, recognizes redemptions as liabilities, when the amount requested in the redemption notice
becomes fixed. This generally may occur at the time of the receipt of the notice, or on the last day of a
fiscal year, depending on the nature of the request. As a result, redemptions paid after the end of the
vear, but based upon year end capital balance are reflected as redemptions payable at March 19, 2018.

13

116/218



EDINETOOOO
o = 2573
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Turkish Lira Money Market Fund

Notes to the Financial Statements

March 19, 2018
(Continued)

3. Fair Value Measurements

Financial instruments are recorded at fair value, Fair value is defined as the price that would be
received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability (i.e., the “exit price™) in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date.

A fair value hierarchy of inputs is used in measuring fair value that maximizes the use of observable
inputs and minimizes the use of unobservable inputs by requiring that the most observable inputs be
used when available. Observable inputs are those that market participants would use in pricing the
asset or liability based on market data obtained from sources independent of the Series Trust.
Unobservable inputs reflect the Series Trust’s assumptions about the inputs market participants would
use in pricing the asset or liability developed based on the best information available in the
circumstances.

The fair value hierarchy is categorized into three levels based on the inputs as follows:

- Level 1 — Inputs that reflect unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities that the Series Trust has the ability to access at the measurement date;

- Level 2 — Inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability either directly or
indirectly, including inputs in markets that are not considered to be active;

= Level 3 — Inputs that are unobservable.

Inputs are used in applying the various valuation techniques and broadly refer to the assumptions that
market participants use to make valuation decisions, including assumptions about risk. A financial
instrument’s level within the fair value hierarchy is based on the lowest level of any input that is
significant to the fair value measurement. The Manager considers observable data to be that market
data which is readily available, regularly distributed or updated, reliable and verifiable, not proprietary
and provided by independent sources that are actively involved in the relevant market. The
categorization of a financial instrument within the hierarchy is based upon the pricing transparency of
the instrument and does not necessarily correspond to the Manager’s perceived risk of that instrument.

Investments whose values are based on quoted market prices in active markets are classified within
Level 1. The Series Trust did not hold any Level | investments at March 19, 2018.

Investments that trade in markets that are not considered to be active, but are valued based on quoted
market prices, dealer quotations or alternative pricing sources supported by observable inputs are
classified within Level 2. As Level 2 investments include positions that are not traded in active
markets and/or are subject to tansfer restrictions, valuations may be adjusted to reflect illiquidity
andfor non-transferability, which are generally based on available market information. Debt securities
are valued using an amortized cost technique and are classified as Level 2.
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Fair Value Measurements (continued)

Investments classified within Level 3 have significant unobservable inputs, as they trade infrequently
or not at all. The Series Trust did not hold any Level 3 investments at March 19, 2018,

The following table presents the investments of the Series Trust measured at fair value within the fair
valuation hierarchy as of March 19, 2018;

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
TRY TRY TRY TRY
Assets
Debt securities = 218205413 - 2183205413
- 218,205,413 - 218,205413

All securities are classified as Level 2. There were no significant transfers of assets between levels
during the year.

Financial Instruments and Related Risks
'The main risks arising from the Series Trust’s financial instruments can be summarized as follows:

Market Risk

The Statement of Assets and Liabilities as of March 19, 2018, includes the fair value of the
contractual commitment arising from debt securities owned by the Series Trust. These investments
involve exposure to market risk.

The value of the Series Trust’s financial instruments will fluctuate as a result of changes in market
prices caused by factors other than interest rates or foreign currency movement,

Interest Rate Risk

Increases in interest rates typically lower the present value of the Series Trust’s future earnings
stream. Since the market price of a security changes continuously based upon the investors’ collective
perceptions of future earnings, security prices will generally decline when investors anticipate or
experience rising interest rates.

Liguidity Risk
Liguidity risk represents the possibility that the Series Trust may not be able to rapidly adjust the size
of its investment position in times of high volatility and financial stress at a reasonable price.

The main liability of the Series Trust is the redemption of any Units that investors may wish to sell.
The Series Trust is exposed to daily cash redemptions of Redeemable Participating Units.

The liquidity of the Series Trust is a factor of the liguidity of the underlying investments. The Series
Trust's assets mainly consist of readily realizable securities. In the opinion of the Manager this should
enable the payment of the Series Trust’s liabilities and any Unitholder's redemption of Redeematble
Participating Units.

17

118/218



EDINETOOOO
o = 2573
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Turkish Lira Money Market Fund

Notes to the Financial Statements

March 19, 2018
{Continued)

4. Financial Instruments and Related Risks (continued)

Liguidity Risk fcontinued)
In the opinion of the Investment Manager, the majority of assets of the Series Trust held at March 19,
2018, can be liquidated within one month in normal circumstances.

Currency Risk
Since all of the investments and cash and cash equivalents of the Series Trust are denominated in the

base currency of the Series Trust, the Statement of Assets and Liabilities and Statement of Operations
will not be affected by currency movements and as a result, a sensitivity analysis has not been
performed.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is measured by the loss the Series Trust would record if its counterparties failed to perform
pursuant (o the terms of their obligations to the Series Trust. The Trust will be exposed to credit risk
on parties with whom it trades and will also bear the risk of settlement default. In particular, the
Series Trust is exposed to credit risk with Brown Brothers Harriman & Co. (“BBH & Co.”) (“the
Sub-Custodian™), which has a Fitch credit rating of A+ and Akbank Malta (Note 6) which has a Fitch
credit rating of AA+

The Series Trust invests in debt securities. Adverse changes in the financial condition of the issuer, or
in general economic conditions, or both, or an unanticipated rise in interest rates, may impair the
ability of the issuer to make payments of interest and principal. The inability of issuers to make
timely payments of interest and principal may affect the value of securities held for the account of the
Series Trust. In the absence of a liquid trading market for certain securities it may not be possible to
establish the fair value of such securities in accordance with the valuation methodology of the Series
Trust. Furthermore, the credit risk of making such investments in emerging economies, generally
tends to be greater when compared to investing in developed countries.

As at March 19, 2018, the Series Trust invested in debt securities with the following credit quality:

Credit Rating
TRY Yo
AA+E 24,044,622 11.02
AAAY 194,160,791 88.98
Total 218,205,413 100.00
* National long term rating
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4. Financial Instruments and Related Risks (continued)

Credit Risk {continued)
The Trustee has appointed the Custodian, whose ultimate parent Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Holdings,

Inc has a JCR credit rating of AA-, The Custodian has in turn appointed the Sub-Custodian. Both the
cash & securities are ultimately held at the Sub-Custodian, with cash being held at the Sub-Custedian
as Banker.

The Series Trust’s securities are maintained by the Sub-Custodian in segregated accounts, thus in the
event of insolvency or bankruptey of the Sub-Custodian, the Series Trust’s assets are segregated. The
Series Trust will, however, be exposed to the eredit risk of the Sub-Custodian, or any depository used
by the Custodian or Sub-Custodian, in relation to the Series Trust’s cash. In the event of insolvency
or bankruptey of the Sub-Custodian, the Series Trust will be treated as a general creditor of the Sub-
Custodian in relation to cash holdings of the Series Trust.

An investment universe which lists all the ratings of eligible securities that the Series Trust has traded
in is maintained, and monitored daily to record rating changes by Fitch. Any rating changes are
reported to the Investment Manager.

Bankruptey or insolvency of the Sub-Custodian may cause the Series Trust rights with respect to its
investments in debt securities held by the bank to be delayed or limited.

5. Unit Capital

As a result of the ability to issue and redeem Units, the capital of the Series Trust can vary depending
on the demand for subscriptions and redemptions to/from the Series Trust. The minimum amount of
subscriptions or redemptions per Unitholder is one Unit and thereafter in one Unit increments.

Units are redeemable on each business day subject to the submission of a repurchase notice by no
later than %am (Dublin time) on the relevant business day or such other deadline as the Investment
Manager may determine at the NAV per unit prevailing at the close of business on the preceding
valuation day, failing which the repurchase request will be held over until the following dealing day
and Units will be redeemed at the repurchase price applicable for that dealing day.

The movements in the number of Units issued during the vear ended March 19, 2018 are as follows:

Nomber of Units
Number of Units outstanding as at beginning of year 13,441,045658
Number of Units issued 24.322.316,335
Mumber of Units redeemed (10,394,639.996)
Number of Units outstanding as at end of year 27,368,722,497

During the year ended March 19, 2018 distributions of TRY23,205,121 were paid of which
TRY 17,220,230 was reinvested back into the Series Trust.
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(Continued)

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at March 19, 2018, is comprised of cash at hand held with the Sub-Custodian
and deposits with maturities of 3 months or less held with Akbank Malta are as follows:

TRY
Cash at hand - BBH & Co. 709,498
Deposit - Akbank Malta 55,000,000
Total 55,709,498

Related Party Transactions

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other party or exercise
significant influence over the other party in making financial or operational decisions. In the opinion of
the Manager there were no transactions with related parties other than those in the normal course of
business. The Manager, Investment Manager, Sub-Investment Manager, Trustee and Akbank T.A.S.
which is the counterparty to the deposit and holds 30,000,170 Units in the Series Trust, are deemed to be
related to the Series Trust, The Series Trust has deposits of TRY 55,000,000 with Akbank Malta (Note
6). Fees incurred with related parties during the vear are disclosed in the Statement of Operations and in
Mofe 8. Amounts payable to related parties at the year end are disclosed in the Statement of Assets and
Liabilities and in Note 8.

Two investors hold an investment of 24.81% and 15.51% in the Series Trust. As a result, any actions of
these related parties can materially impact the Series Trust.

. Fees and Expenses

The Manager receives out of the assets of the Series Trust a fee at the rate of 0.025% per annum of the
NAV, accrued on and calculated as at each valuation day and payable in US Dollars monthly in arrears,
subject to a minimum fee of TRY40,000 per calendar year.

The Trustee receives out of the assets of the Series Trust a fee at the rate of 0.04% per annum of the
NAV, acerued on and calculated as at each valuation day and payable in Euro monthly in arrears,
subject to a minimum fee of TRY43,000 per calendar year.

The Investment Manager receives out of the assets of the Series Trust a fee at the rate of 0.30% per
annum of the NAV, accrued on and calculated as at each valuation day and payable in Japanese Yen
monthly in arrears.

The Sub-Investment Manager receives a fee at the rate of 0.55% per annum of the NAV, accrued on and
calculated as at each valuation day and payable in TRY monthly in arrears.

20

121/218



EDINETOOOO
o = 2573

Ooooooooooooooooogno
Turkish Lira Money Market Fund

Notes to the Financial Statements

March 19, 2018
{Continued)

8, Fees and Expenses (continued)

The Administrator receives out of the assets of the Series Trust a fee at the rate of 0.08% per annum of
the NAV, accrued on and calculated as at each valuation day and payable in Euro monthly in arrears,
subject to a minimum fee of TRY8,900 per month. The Administrator will also be paid an audit
assistance fee of an amount equivalent in Euro to TRYS,900, In addition, the Administrator will also be
paid a fee of TRY270 in respect of each new Unitholder and a fee of TRY435 for each update of the
Register that it is required to undertake. The Administrator is also reimbursed for any reasonable out-of-
pocket expenses necessarily incurred in the performance of its duties.

The Custodian receives out of the assets of the Series Trust a fee at the rate of 0.12% per annum of the
NAWV, accrued on and calculated as at each valuation day and payable in US Dollars monthly in arrears,
subject to a minimum fee in US Dollars of an amount equivalent to TRY2,100 per month. The
Custodian is also reimbursed for any reasonable out-of-pocket expenses necessarily incurred in the
performance of its duties.

The Distributor receives out of the assets of the Series Trust a fee at the rate of 0.35% per annum of the
NAV, accrued on and calculated as at each valuation day and payable in Japanese Yen monthly in
ArTears.

The Agent Company receives out of the assets of the Series Trust a fee at the rate of 0.10% per annum
of the NAV, accrued on and calculated as at each valuation day and payable in Japanese Yen monthly in
arrears.

The fees pavable as at March 19, 2018 are as follows:

TRY

Investment Manager fees 42,471
Sub-Investment Manager fees 77,864
Manager fees 3,539
Administration fees 32,530
Custodian fees 16,989
Trustee fees 5,663
Distributor and Agent Company fees 63,613
Audit fees 45,784
Other expenses 99,780
438&33
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Offsetting assets and liabilities

The Series Trust is required to disclose the impact of offsetting assets and liabilities represented in the
Statement of Assets and Liabilities to enable users of the financial statements to evaluate the effect or
potential effect of netting arrangements on its financial position for recognized assets and liabilities,

These recopgnized assets and liabilities are financial instruments and derivative instruments that are
either subject to an enforcable master netting arrangement or similar agreement or meet the following
right of set-off criteria: the amounts owed by the Series Trust to another party are determinable, the
Series Trust has the right to set-off the amounts owed with the amounts owed by the other party, the
Series Trust intends to set-off, and the Series Trust's right of set-off is enforceable at law.

As at March 19, 2018, no assets and liabilities were offset on the Statement of Assets and Liabilities.

Reconciliation of the Dealing NAV to NAV per Financial Statements

2018

TRY
Reported NAY 273,415,048
Trade date adjustment 272,191
Establishment costs written off {543,418)
Establishment costs amortized in reported NAY 391,722
MNAY attributable to Holders of Units per Financial Statements 273,535,543
Number of Units per Reported NAV 27,341,503,382
Trade date adjustment 27,219,115
Number of Units per Finanecial Statements 27,368,722,497
Reported NAV per Unit 0.01
MNAV per Unit per Financial Statements 0.01
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10. Reconciliation of the Dealing NAY to NAV per Financial Statements (continued)

11.

The establishment costs, estimated at TRY 543,418 were fully charged in the Statement of Operations in
the period in which they were incurred. For the purpose of calculating the Reported NAV per Unit used
for dealing purposes, these establishment costs relating to the creation of the Series Trust are amortized
over the first seven accounting periods of the Series Trust or such other period as the Manager may
determine and in such manner as the Manager in its absolute discretion deems fair in accordance with
the Offering Memorandum,

For Unitholder dealing purposes, transactions are accounted for on a trade date plus 1 business day
basis. For financial reporting purposes, transactions are accounted for on a trade date basis. Transactions
pecurring between close of business on the last trade date and the financial reporting vear end date have
required an adjustment of TRY272,191.

Subsequent Evenis

The Manager has performed a subsequent review from March 19, 2018 through to September 12, 2018
being the date that the financial statements were available to be issued. Through September 12, 2018
investors subscribed TRY119,991,093 into the Series Trust and redeemed TRY83,134,092 capital from
the Series Trust.

The Manager concluded that there were no other subsequent events which required additional disclosure
in these financial statements.

23

124/218



EDINETOOOO
o = 2573
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2019
561,611,386.23 10,496,516,809
2,014,939.58 37,659,221
559,596,446.65 10,458,857,588
55,959,640,167
0.01 0.1869
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@
2018 12 31
2018 2017
1,418,614 152,912 1,401,140 151,029
35 982,827 105,939 541,245 58,341
112,528 12,129 93,213 10,047
12 157,411 16,967 200,107 21,570
2,671,380 287,948 2,235,705 240,987
8 337,104 36,336 355,195 38,286
337,104 36,336 355,195 38,286
3,008,484 324,284 2,590,900 279,273
137,255 14,795 178,468 19,237
6 735,961 79,329 742,026 79,983
533,732 57,531 390,169 42,056
951,536 102,566 630,237 67,933
2,358,484 254,221 1,940,900 209,210
9 50,000 5,390 50,000 5,390
600,000 64,674 600,000 64,674
650,000 70,064 650,000 70,064
3,008,484 324,284 2,590,900 279,273
2019 27
@
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2018 12 31
2018 2017
6 9,990,854 1,076,914 10,424,230 1,123,628
7 (80, 230) (8,648) (228,308) (24,609)
9,910,624 1,068,266 10,195,922 1,099,018
330,831 35,660 182,293 19,649
53,195 5,734 51,219 5,521
10 11 (6,949,592) (749,097)  (7,426,076) (800, 457)
3,345,058 360,564 3,003,358 323,732
3,345,058 360,564 3,003,358 323,732
2018 12 31
2016 12 31 50,000 5,390 600,000 64,674 650,000 70,064
- - 3,003,358 323,732 3,003,358 323,732
- - (3,003,358)  (323,732)  (3,003,358)  (323,732)
2017 12 31 50,000 5,390 600,000 64,674 650,000 70,064
- - 3,345,058 360,564 3,345,058 360,564
- - (3.345,058)  (360,564)  (3,345,058)  (360,564)
2018 12 31 50,000 5,390 600,000 64,674 650,000 70,064
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2018 12 31
2018 2017

3,345,058 360,564 3,003,358 323,732
39,747 4,284 47,936 5,167
(441,582) (47,598) 497,807 53,659
(19,315) (2,082) 37,878 4,083
42,696 4,602 38,008 4,097
(41,213) (4,442) 75,668 8,156
(6,065) (654) (137,456) (14,816)
143,563 15,475 (559,101) (60, 265)
3,062,889 330,149 3,004,098 323,812
(33,640) (3,626) (25,142) (2,710)
11,984 1,292 0 0
(21,656) (2,334) (25,142) (2,710)

(3,023,759) (325,931) (3,527,240) (380,201)

(3,023,759) (325,931) (3,527,240) (380,201)

17,474 1,884 (548,284) (59,100)
1,401,140 151,029 1,949,424 210,128
1,418,614 152,912 1,401,140 151,029

2018 12 31
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IFRS 16
IFRS 16
(a IFRS 15
2018
IFRS 15 IFRS 15
1AS 18 1AS 11
IFRS 15
IFRS 15
IFRS 15
(b IFRS
2018
IFRS IFRS
IAS 39 IFRS
IFRS
1AS 39 IFRS
IAS 39
2018 1AS
39 IFRS
IAS 39 IFRS IAS 39 IFRS
1,401,140 1,401,140
541,245 541,245
200,107 200,107
2,142,492 2,142,492
178,468 178,468
742,026 742,026
390,169 390,169
630,237 630,237
1,940,900 1,940,900
IFRS 1AS 39 ( ECL )
IFRS IAS 39
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2018 2018 2017 2017
0 30 317,122 (3,133) 295,475 -
31 60 81,707 (1,236) 21,575 -
61 90 12,666 (311) 24,200 -
91 734,282 (158,270) 371,056 (171,061)
1,145,777 (162,950) 712,306 (171,061)
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2018 2017
8,264,753 8,858,002
610,148 561,854
618,767 656,244
164,183 167,500
140,080 117,296
108,938 -
83,985 63,334
9,990,854 10,424,230

IFRS 15
IAS 18

2018 2017
644,523 425,248
(605,299) (644,523)

2018 2017
1,145,777 712,306
(162,950) (171,061)
982,827 541,245
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2018 2017

171,061 5,567

80,230 228,308

(22,880) (2,610)

(65,461) (60,204)

162,950 171,061

2018
341,637 399,545 236,413 156,891 1,134,486
- 14,268 19,372 - 33,640
- (10,817) (15,969) - (26,786)
341,637 402,996 239,816 156,891 1,141,340
177,692 346,243 171,807 83,549 779,291
4,098 20,558 7,756 7,335 39,747
- (7,948) (6,854) - (14,802)
181,790 358,853 172,709 90,884 804,236
2018 12 31
159,847 44,143 67,107 66,007 337,104
2017

341,637 374,403 236,413 156,891 1,109,344
- 25,142 - - 25,142
341,637 399,545 236,413 156,891 1,134,486
173,489 318,148 164,318 75,400 731,355
4,203 28,095 7,489 8,149 47,936
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177,692 346,243 171,807 83,549 779,291
2017 12 31
163,945 53,302 64,606 73,342 355,195
2018 2017
80,000 80,000 80,000
41,667 50,000 50,000
10.
2018 2017
330,786 192,958
523,744 -
2018 2018
2018 12 31
343,693 2017 343,693
11.
2018 12 31
116,247 2017 120,976
12.
2018 12 31
2018 2017
610,148 561,854
IMS 115,981 127,287
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2018 2017
154,711 200,107
2018 12 31 4,245,139
2017 4,685,511 91,120 2017 93,255
2018 12 31

2017

2019 27
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INTERNATIONAL MANAGEMENT SERVICES LTD.

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

December 31, 2018
(stated in United States dollars)
Note(s) 2018 2017
Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 1,418,614 1,401,140
Accounts receivable 3,5 982,827 541,245
Other receivables and prepaid expenses 112,528 93,213
Due from affiliated companies 12 57,411 200,107
2,671,380 2,235,705
Non-current asseis
Property and equipment 8 337,104 355,195
337,104 355,195
Total assets USS 3,008,484 2,590,900
Liabilities and shareholder’s equity
Current liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 137,255 178,468
Unearned income and payable to customers a 735,961 T42,026
Staff bonuses payable 533,732 390,169
Dividends payable 951,536 630,237
2,358,484 1,940,900
Sharcholder’s equity
Share capital 9 50,000 50,000
Retained eamnings 600,000 600,000
650,000 650,000
Total liabilities and shareholder’s equity USE 3,008,484 2,590,900

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
Approved on behalf of the Board on March 27, 2019

GARY BUTLER
Director
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INTERNATIONAL MANAGEMENT SERVICES LTD.

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

Year ended December 31, 2018

(stated in United States dollars)
Note(s) 2018 2017

Income

Revenue & 9,990,854 10,424,230
Less: Bad and doubtful debts 7 (80,230) {228.308)
9.910,624 10,195,922
Other income 330,831 182,203
Rental income 53,195 51,219
Administration expenses 10,11 (6,949,592) (7,426,076)
Results from operating activities 3,345,058 3,003,358
Net income for year USs 3,345,058 3,003,358

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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INTERNATIONAL MANAGEMENT SERVICES LTD.

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Shareholder’s Equity

Year ended December 51, 2018
(stated in United States dollars)

Share Retained

capital eamnings Total
Balance at December 31, 2016 50,000 600,000 650,000
Net income for vear - 3,003,358 3,003,358
Dividends declared - (3,003,358) (3,003,358)
Balance at December 31, 2017 50,000 600,000 650,000
Net income for year - 3,345,058 3,345,058
Dividends declared - (3,345,058) (3,345,058)
Balance at December 31, 2018 USS 50,000 600,000 650,000

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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INTERNATIONAL MANAGEMENT SERVICES LTD.
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Year ended December 31, 2018
(stated in United States dollars)

2018 2017
Cash provided by/(applied in):
Operating activities
Met income for year 3,345,058 3,003,558
Add/{deduct):
[tems not affecting the movement of cash:
Depreciation 39,747 47,936
Net changes in non-cash balances relating to operations:
Accounts receivable (441,582) 497.807
Other receivables and prepaid expenses (19,315) 37,878
Due from affiliated companies 42,696 38,008
Accounts payable and accrued expenses (41,213) 75,668
Unearned income and payable to customers {6,065) {137,456)
Staff bonuses payable 143,563 (559,101)
3,062,835 3,004,098
Investing activities
Purchase of property and equipment (33,640) (25,142)
Loss on disposal of assets 11,984 0
(21,656) (25,142)
Financing activities
Dividends paid (3,023,759) (3,527,240)
(3,023,759) (3,527,240)
Increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents during year 17,474 {548,284)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 1,401,140 1,949,424
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year Uss 1,418,614 1,401,140

See accompanying noles to consolidated financial statements.
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INTERNATIONAL MANAGEMENT SERVICES LTD.
Motes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2018
(stated in United States dollars)

1. Imcorporation and background information

International Management Services Ltd. (the “Company™) was incorporated under the Companies
Law (2018 Revision) of the Cayman [slands on August 30, 1974 and provides company and
insurance management and corporate secretarial services. On December 12, 1985, the Company
was licensed under Section 4 (5) of The Companies Management Law (2018 Revision) to carry on
the business of company management in or within the Cayman Islands. On May 13, 1988, the
Company was licensed under Section 4 (2) of The Insurance Law 2010, to carry on the business of
insurance management in or within the Cayman Islands. On July 27, 1994, the Company was
licensed under Section 12 of The Mutual Funds Law (2015 Revision) to carry on the business of
mutital fund administration. On June 7, 2004 the Company was licensed under the Banks and Trust
Companies Law (2018 Revision), to carry on trust business from within the Cayman Islands. On
December 28, 2006, the Company surrendered its Companies Management Licence.

The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of The IMS Group Ltd., a company also incorporated
in the Cayman Islands.

The financial results of the Company and its wholly owned subsidiaries (the “Group™) are
consolidated at year end to form the Group.

The registered office of the Company is 3" Floor Harbour Centre, George Town, P.O. Box 61,
Grand Cayman KY1-1102, Cayman Islands.

The Group had 28 employees as at December 31, 2018 (2017: 28).

2. Basis of presentation
(a) Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements are prepared and approved by the Directors in
accordance with Intemmational Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS") as issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”).

Management has made an assessment of the Group's ability to continue as a going concern and
is satisfied that the Group has the resources to continue in business for the foreseeable future.
Furthermore, management is not aware of any material uncertainties that may cast a significant
doubt upon the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. Therefore, the consolidated
financial statements continue to be prepared on the going concern basis,

(b} Basis of measurement

These consolidated financial statements are prepared on the historical cost basis except for
financial assets and financial liabilities which are measured at amortised cost.

{c) Functional and presentation curvency

The Group’s functional and presentation currency is the United States dollar and not the local
currency of the Cayman Islands reflecting the fact that the Group’s operations are primarily
conducted in United States dollars (USS)
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INTERNATIONAL MANAGEMENT SERVICES LTD.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued}

December 31, 2018
(stated in United States dollars)

2. Basis of presentation (continued)
(d) Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of consoclidated financial statements in accordance with [FRS requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial staterments and the
reported amounts of income and expenses during the year. Actual results could differ from
those estimates.

(e) New standards not yet adopted

Certain new standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards issued to date are
not yet effective for the consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended
December 31, 2018, and have neither been applied nor early adopted in preparing these
consolidated financial statements. Management is currently evaluating the impact of these
standards on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

IFRS 16, Leases, will supersede the current lease guidance including IAS 17 Leases and the
related Interpretations when it becomes effective for accounting periods beginning on or after
1 January 2019. IFRS 16 provides acomprehensive model for the identification of lease
arrangements and their treatment in the financial statements for both lessors and lessees. No
material impact is expected in respect of the adoption of IFRS 16.

3. Changes in significant accounting policies

fa) IFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with Customers

In the current year, the Group has applied [FRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers,
which is effective for an annual period that begins on or after January 1, 2018. IFRS 15
establishes a comprehensive framework for determining whether, how much and when revenue
is recognised. It replaced IAS 18 Revenuwe, IAS 11 Construction Contracts and related
interpretations, Under IFRS 15, revenue is recognised when a customer obtains .control of
goods or services. Management has assessed the requirements and concluded that the manner
in which revenue was previously recognised is consistent with IFRS 15 and thus no
retrospective changes or major changes in judgments are required. Amendments have been
made to address additional presentation and disclosure requirements in accordance with [FRS
15 and are disclosed in note 6.

(b) IFRS 9, Financial Instruments

In the current year, the Group has applied IFRS 9 Financial Instruments effective for an annual
period that begins on or after January 1, 2018. IFRS 9 sets out requirements for recognising
and measuring financial assets, financial liabilities and some contracts to buy or sell non-
financial items.
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INTERNATIONAL MANAGEMENT SERVICES LTD.
Motes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

December 31, 2018
(stated in United States doliars)

3. Changes in significant accounting policies (continued)
{b) IFRS 9, Financial Instruments (continued)

This standard replaces [AS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. The
classification of financial assets under IFRS 9 is generally based on the business model in
which a financial assets is managed and its contractual cash flow characteristics. [FRS 9
eliminates the previous [AS 39 categories of held to maturity, loans and receivables and
available for sale. IFRS 9 largely retains the existing requirements in IAS 39 for the
classification and measurement of financial liabilities.

The following table explains the original classification and measurement categories under [AS
39 and the new measurement categories under IFRS 9 for each class of the Company’s financial
assets and financial liabilities as at January 1, 2018:

Original MNew Original carrying Mew carrying
classification classification amount under amount under
under TAS 39 under IFRS 9 IAS 39 [FRS 9
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents Loans and  Amortised cost 1,401,140 1,401,140
. receivables
Accounts receivable Loans and Amortised cost 541,245 541,245
receivables
Due from affiliated Loans and Amortised cost 200,107 200,107
companies receivables
Financial Assets 2,142 492 2,142,492
Financial Liabilities
Accounts payable and Other financial  Other financial 178,468 178,468
accrued expenses liabilities liabilities
Unearned income and Other financial Other financial 742,026 742,026
payable to customers liabilities liabilities
Staff bonuses payable Other financial  Other financial 390,169 390,169
liabilities liabilities
Dividends payable Other financial  Other financial 630,237 630,237
liabilities liabilities
Financial Liabilities 1,940,200 1,940,900
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INTERNATIONAL MANAGEMENT SERVICES LTD.
Motes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

December 31, 2018
(stated in United States dollars)

3. Changes in significant accounting policies (continued)
(b} IFRS 9, Financial Instruments (continued)

[FRS 9 replaces the ‘incurred loss® model in IAS 39 with an ‘expected credit loss’ (ECL) model.
The new impairment model applies to financial assets measured at amortised cost. Under IFRS
9, credit losses are recognised earlier than under [TAS 39.

The Group has determined the ECL under IFRS 9 by reviewing historical cash collections over
a period of two years, subsequent to an annual billing cyele, to calculate loss percentages within
a provision matrix. The ECL has also been impacted by current economic factors relating to
specific clients with long outstanding accounts receivable. The impairment amounts determined
for the valuation of trade receivables as noted above are disclosed in note 5.

4. Significant accounting policies

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in
these consolidated financial statements and there have been no changes to accounting policies,
except as disclosed in note 3. The significant accounting policies adopted by the Group are as
follows:

(a) Consolidated wholly owned subsidiaries

Date of

incorporation/

Company Business addition
SH Corporate Services Ltd Registered Office Services April 20, 2001
A.S. Nominees Ltd.* Mominee Company January 27, 1978
N.D. Nominee Lid. * Nominee Company January 27, 1978
M.S. Nominee Ltd.* Mominee Company January 27, 1978
Cardinal Nominee Ltd.* Mominee Company October 26, 1979
[0S Trustees Ltd.*® Trustee Services April 27, 2012
IMS Liquidations Ltd. Liquidation Services January 25, 2013

* These wholly owned subsidiaries of the Company have been established to act only in a
nominee capacity and have not traded in their own right during the years ended December
31,2018 and 2017.

All income earned and expenses incurred by these companies are accounted for by the Company
and all inter-company transactions and balances are eliminated on consolidation. The financial
statements of the subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial statements from the date
that contrel commences to the date that control ceases.

10
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INTERNATIONAL MANAGEMENT SERVICES LTD.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

December 31, 2018
(stated in United States dollars)

4. Significant accounting policies (continued)
{a) Consolidated wholly owned subsidiaries (continued)

The Group accounts for business combinations using the acquisition method when control is
transferred to the Group. The consideration is generally measured at fair value, as are the
identifiable net asset acquired.

th) Financial assets and liabilities
(i)  Classification

A financial asset is any asset that is cash, a contractual right to receive cash or another
financial asset, or to exchange financial instruments under conditions that are potentially
favourable or an equily instrument of another enterprise. Financial assets classified as
and measured at amortised cost comprise cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable,
other receivables and due from affiliated companies.

A financial liability is any liability that is a contractual obligation to deliver cash or
another financial asset or to exchange financial instruments with another enterprise under
conditions that are potentially unfavourable. Financial liabilities classified as other
financial liabilities and measured at amortised cost comprise accounts payable and
accrued expenses, unearned income and payable to customers, staff bonuses payable and
dividend payable.

(i)  Recognition

The Group recognises financial assets and financial liabilities on the date it becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

(iii)  Measurement

Financial instruments are measured initially at cost. For financial assets acquired, cost
is the fair value of the consideration given, while for financial liabilities, cost is the fair
value of consideration received. The amortized cost of a financial asset or liability is
the amount at which the financial asset or liability is measured at initial recognition,
minus principal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortisation using the
effective interest method of any difference between the initial amount recognized and
the maturity amount, minus any reduction for impairment.

fiv) Fair value

Fair value estimates are made at a specific point in time, based on market conditions and
information about the financial instrument. These estimates are subjective in nature and
involve uncertainties and matters of significant judgement and therefore, cannot be
determined with precision. Changes in assumptions could significantly affect the
estimates.

The carrying amount of financial assets and liabilities is considered to approximate fair
value due to the immediate or short-term nature of these financial instruments.

11
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INTERNATIONAL MANAGEMENT SERVICES LTD.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

December 31, 2018
(stated in United States dollars)

4. Significant accounting policies (continued)
(b) Financial assets and liabilities (continued)
{v}  Derecognition

A financial asset is derecognised when the Group loses control over the contractual rights
that comprise that asset. This occurs when the rights are realised, expire or are surrendered.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation specified in the contract is
discharged, cancelled or expired.

(vi) Impairment and calculation of recoverable amount

Previously financial assets were reviewed at each statement of financial position date to
determine whether there is objective evidence of impairment. If any such indication
existed, the recoverable amount of the asset was estimated.

IFRS 9 requires an expected credit loss model as opposed to an incurred credit loss model.
The expected credit loss model requires the Company to account for expected credit losses
and changes in those expected credit losses at each reporting date to reflect changes in
credit risk since initial recognition of the financial assets. In other words, it is no longer
necessary for a credit event to have occurred before credit losses are recognised.

The Group’s accounts receivable is related to services that are different in nature, the
majority are derived from the provision of Fiduciary services and then to a lesser extent
from the provision of registered office services. The clients that these services are
provided to consist of a majority of regulated and administrated hedge funds and insurance
caplives, the remainder of clients are companies or frusts belonging to individuals or
individual companies.

(vi) Impairment and calculation of recoverable amount {continued)

Impairment losses are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income. If in a
subsequent period the amount of impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be linked
objectively 1o an event occurring after the write-down, the write-down or allowance is
reversed through the statement of comprehensive income.

(c) Revenue Recognition

The Company recognizes revenue from the provision of fiduciary services, registered office
services and company management services to client companies. The specific services required
involve the annual provision of a director to act in his fiduciary capacity for client companies as
well as the provision of a client company registered office for a set annual fee, In addition, as
part of the contractual terms, client companies also receive corporates services throughout the
financial year on the basis of fees specified in the contract.

12
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INTERNATIONAL MANAGEMENT SERVICES LTD.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

December 31, 2018
{stated in United States dollars)

4. Significant accounting policies (continued)
(c) Revenue Recognition (continted)

Fiduciary services are provided for the annual period represented by a calendar year which
coincides with the Group’s financial year. The service is provided for the annual period unless
the client company relationship is terminating, and the director is formally required to resign
from the board, in these cases pro-rated fees are agreed upon for the reduced period.

The provision of registered office services and company management services is considered a
distinct service which occurs in the calendar year. This period aligns with the Group and the
Government financial year, the revenue is therefore recognized when the service has been
rendered, over the financial year. Refer to note 6 for further disclosures.

(d) Foreign currency

Assets and liabilities that are denominated in foreign currencies are translated at rates of
exchange prevailing at the consolidated statement of financial position date. Transactions in
foreign currencies are translated at the rates of exchange ruling on the date of the transaction.
Any resulting exchange gains or losses are credited or debited to the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

(e} Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents is comprised of current bank accounts held with financial institutions
with original terms to maturity of three months or less.

(f} Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are sfated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any
accumulated impairment loss.

Depreciation is recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income after taking
into account residual values over the following expected useful lives of the assets using the

respective methods:
Office building 2.5% p.a. Reducing Balance
Computer equipment 20% p.a.  Straight Line Method
Furniture and equipment 10% p.a.  Reducing Balance
Leasehold improvements 10% p.a. Reducing Balance

The carrying amount of property, plant and equipment is reviewed at each reporting date to
determine whether there is any indication of impairment. Impairment losses are recognised in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income in the year in which they are identified.
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INTERNATIONAL MANAGEMENT SERVICES LTD.

Motes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

December 31, 2018
(stared in United States dollars)

4, Significant accounting policies (continued)
(g) Unearned income and payable to customers

Unearned income and payable to customers comprise funds received from clients as
prepayments for services to be performed in future years. A portion of this amount represents
the Group’s contract liabilities. Refer to note 6.

(h) Expenses

Expenses are recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on the accrual
basis.

(i) Lease pavments

Rental payable for property leased under operating leases is recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

() Emplovee benefits
(i)  Defined contribution pension plan

The Group participates in a defined contribution plan. A defined contribution plan is a
post-employment benefit plan under which the Group pays fixed contributions into a
separate entity and has no legal or constructive obligation if the plan does not hold
sufficient assets to pay all employee benefits relating to employee service in the current
and prior periods. Obligations for contributions to defined confribution pension plans are
recognised as an expense in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income as
incurred.
(i)  Showrt-term benefits

Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and
expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is recognised for the amount
expected to be paid under short-term cash bonus or profit-sharing plans if the Group has

a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service
provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

(k) Assets under administration

In the normal course of business, the Group provides fiduciary services by acting as trustee of
Trusts. The assets and liabilities of the Trusts under the Group’s management are not incorporated
in these consolidated financial statements.

(1} Taxes

Mo income, profit or capital gains taxes are levied in the Cayman Islands. Accordingly, no
provision for such taxes is recorded in the accompanying consolidated financial statements. In the
event that such taxes are levied, the Company has received an undertaking from the Cayman
Islands Government that no such taxes will be levied until 2022,
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INTERNATIONAL MANAGEMENT SERVICES LTD.
MNotes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

December 31, 2018
(stated in United States dollars)

5. Financial risk management
fa) Iniroduction and overview

The Group has exposure to credit, liquidity and market risks through its financial instruments, This
nole presents information about the Group's exposure to each of these risk and the Group's
objective, policies and processes for measuring and managing risk and the Group’s management of
capital.

Risk management framework

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the
Group’s financial risk management framework.

(b) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a client or counterparty to a financial
instrument fails to meet its obligations and arises primarily from the Group’s accounts
receivable, cash and cash equivalents, and due from affiliated companies.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of
each client. The demographics of the Group’s client base, including the default risk of the
industry and country in which clients operate, has less of an influence on credit risk. No client
individually represents more than 5% of the Group’s income.

The Group’s establishes a provision for bad and doubtful accounts that represents its expected
credit loss of accounts receivable,

The nature of the Group’s exposure to credit risk and its objectives, policies and processes for
managing credit risk have not changed significantly from the prior year, The Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk is the carrying value of its financial assets.

Management of credit risk

The Group manages credit risk in respect of cash and cash equivalents by using reputable
financial institutions to safeguard these financial assets. Management does not expect any
financial losses as a result of these relationships.

The Group manages credit risk in respect of accounts receivables by performing initial credit
evaluations of the financial condition of its customers. Periodic reviews of outstanding customer
balances are performed by management. Management does not expect any significant
counterparties to fail to meet their obligations. Management believe that unimpaired amounts
that are past due are still collectible in full.
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INTERNATIONAL MANAGEMENT SERVICES LTD.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements {continued)

December 31, 2018
(stated in United States dollars)

5. Financial risk management (continued)

The Group’s aging of accounts receivables at the reporting date was:

Gross [mpairment Gross  Impairment

2018 2018 2017 2017

0 to 30 days 317,122 (3,133) 295,475 -
31 to 60 days 81,707 (1,236) 21,575 -
61 to 90 days 12,666 (311) 24,200 -
More than 91 days 734,282 (158,270) 371,056 (171,061)

USS  1,145777  (162,950) 712306  (171,061)

Impairment of trade receivables is based on a loss provision matrix determined by the
Company as disclosed in note 3.

(e) Liguidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they
fall due. The Group’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will
always have sufficient liguidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed
conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Group’s reputation.
The nature of the Group’s exposure to liquidity risk and its objectives, policies and processes
for managing liquidity risk have not changed significantly from the prior year.

{d} Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, will affect
the Group’s income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market
risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters,
while optimising the return.

fe) Currency risk

Currency risks arise as a portion of the Group’s payment of expenses are in Cayman Island
dollars. Currency risk is mitigated as the Cayman Islands dollar is fixed against the United States
dollar,

() Capital management

The Group’s regulator, the Cayman Islands Monetary Authority (the *Authority™), sets and monitors
capital requirements for the Group under the Monetary Authority Law (2018 Revision), the
Companies Management Law (2018 Revision), the Insurance Law, 2010, the Mutual Funds Law
(2015 Revision) and the Bank and Trust Companies Law (2018 Revision). The Group is required to
have a minimum net worth of CI5400,000 (US53500,000) and has a 3 month filing deadline after year
end date. The Group’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base to sustain future development of
the business. The Group has complied with all imposed capital requirements throughout the vear,
and there were no material changes to the Group’s management of capital during the year.

16

157/218



EDINETOOOO
o = 2573
Ooooooooooooooooooad

INTERNATIONAL MANAGEMENT SERVICES LTD.
MNotes to Consolidated Financial Statements {continued)

December 31, 2018
(stated in United States dollars)

6. Revenue

The Group derives its revenue from contracts with customers for the transfer of services during the
year in the following major service lines.

2018 2017

Directorship Services 8,264,753 8,858,002
Management Fee from related party 610,148 561,854
Registered office services 618,767 656,244
Captive insurance management 164,183 167,500
Trustee services 140,080 117,296
Anti-money Laundering Services 108,938 -
Other 83,985 63,334
USS 9,990,854 10,424,230

Annual fees are fee charged for the services noted above to client companies. This is mainly in the
form of fixed fees, with additional fees earned on a time spent basis as charged throughout the year.
Under [FRS 15, this revenue is recognised overtime as the performance obligations are satisfied
throughout the financial year, which is consistent with the contract period. There was no material
change in the amount or timing of revenue recognition previously reported under IAS 18.

The Group has no contract assets. The following table provides information about the contract
liabilities from contracts with customers, the figures below constitute the revenue portion of amounts
represented as unearned income and payable to customers:

Contract Liabilities

2018 2017
Revenue recognized from previous years’ contract liabilities 644,523 425,248
Increases due to payments received that relate to the following
years’ revenue (605,299) (644,523}
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INTERNATIONAL MANAGEMENT SERVICES LTD.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

December 31, 2018
(stated in United States dollars)

7. Accounts receivable

2018 2017

Gross accounts receivable 1,145,777 712,306
Provision for doubtful accounts (162,950) (171,061)

Uss 982.827 541.245
Movements in the provision for doubtful accounts during the year are as follows:

2018 2017

Balance at beginning of vear 171,061 5,567
Charge to consolidated statement of comprehensive income 80,230 228,308
Recoveries of doubtful debts (22,880) (2,610)
Doubtful debts written off (65,461) {60,204)

US$ 162,950 171,061

8. Property and equipment
Office  Computer Furniture & Leasehold
2018 building equipment equipment improvements Total
Cost:
Balance at beginning 341,637 390,545 236,413 156,891 1,134,486
of year
Additions - 14,268 19,372 - 33,640
Disposals - (10,817) (15,969) - (26,786)
Balance at end of year 341,637 402,996 239,816 156,891 1,141,340
Accumulated depreciation:
Balance at beginning 177,692 346,243 171,807 23,549 779,291
of year

Charge for year 4,098 20,558 7,756 7,315 39,747
Disposals - (7,948) (6,854) - {14,802)
Balance at end of year 181,790 358,853 172,709 90,884 804,236
Met book value at
December 31, 2018 USE 159,847 44,143 67,107 66,007 337,104
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INTERNATIONAL MANAGEMENT SERVICES LTD.
Motes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

December 31, 2018
{(stated in United States dollars)

8. Property and equipment (continued)

Office = Computer Furniture & Leasehold

2017 building equipment equipment improvements Total
Cost:
Balance at beginning 341,637 374,403 236,413 156,891 1,109,344

of year
Additions - 25,142 - - 25,142
Balance at end of year 341,637 399,545 236,413 156,891 1,134 486
Accumulated depreciation:
Balance at beginning 173,489 318,148 164,318 75,400 731,355

of year
Charge for year 4,203 28,095 7,489 8,149 47,936
Balance at end of year 177,692 346,243 171,807 83,549 779,291
Met book value at
December 31, 2017 USS 163,945 53,302 64,606 73,342 355,195

9. Share capital
2018 2017

Authorised:

80,000 shares of CI$1 each 80,000 80,000
Issued and fully paid:

41,667 shares Uss 50,000 20,000

19
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INTERNATIONAL MANAGEMENT SERVICES LTD.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

December 31, 2018
{(stated in United States dollars, except for the par value of share capital)

10. Lease commitments

The future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable leases are as follows:

2018 2017
Less than one vear 330,786 192,958
Between two and five years USs 523,744 -

Cn 4 June 2018, the Group renewed the lease agreement for office space with the term commencing
August 1, 2018 for a period of three years.

During the year ended December 31, 2018, the Group incurred rent expense from the lease of its
office space and satellite parking of US$343,693 (2017: US$343,693),
11. Defined contribution pension plan

The Group participates in the Fidelity Pension Plan, a defined contribution pension scheme. The
Group is required to match each employee’s contribution on a one to one basis up to 3% of the
employee’s annual salary. During the year ended December 31, 2018, the Group contributed
USE116,247 (2017: US$120,976).

12. Related party transactions

During the year ended December 31, 2018, the Group earned the following administration and
management fees from its affiliated companies:

2018 2017
Corporate Filing Services Ltd. USS 610,148 561,854
IMS Securities Ltd. 115,981 127,287
Amounts due from related affiliates are as follows:

2018 2017
Corporate Filing Services Ltd. USE 154,711 200,107

During the year ended December 31, 2018, the Group paid USS 4,245,139 (2017: US$4,685,511)
in short-term employment benefits and US$91,120 (2017: US$93,255) in long-term employment
benefits to key management personnel.
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INTERNATIONAL MANAGEMENT SERVICES LTD.
MNotes to Consolidated Financial Statements {(continued)

December 31, 2018
(stated in United States dollars)

12. Contingencies

The Group, in its fiduciary capacity, may be a party to litigation and claims in the normal course of
business. In the opinion of the Directors, which is based on the advice of the Group’s legal counsel,
no contingency provisions are required at 31 December 2018 (2017: Nil}.

13. Subsequent events

In preparing these consolidated financial statements, management has evaluated and disclosed all
material subsequent events up to March 27, 2019 which is the date that the consolidated financial
statements were available to be issued.
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Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Turkish Lira Money Market
Fund (the “ Series Trust” ), a series trust of Multi Strategies Fund, which comprise
the statement of assets and liabilities, including the schedule of investments as at
March 19, 2019, the statements of operations, changes in net assets and cash flows
for the year then ended, and notes, comprising a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of the Series Trust as at March 19, 2019, and its
financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing

(“ ISAs” ). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the

“ Auditor®s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements” section of
our report. We are independent of the Series Trust in accordance with International
Ethics Standards Board for Accountants Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants

(“ IESBA Code” ) together with ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of
the financial statements in the Cayman Islands, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the IESBA Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Restriction on Use

This report is made solely to the Trustee in accordance with the terms of our
engagement. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Trustee
those matters we are required to state to the Trustee in an auditor®s report and for
no other purpose. We do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the
Trustee, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinion we have formed.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these
financial statements in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles, and for such internal control as management determines iIs necessary to
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Series Trust®s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless management either intends to liquidate the Series Trust or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Series Trust"s

financial reporting process.

207/218



EDINETOOOO
o = 2573
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Auditor®s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor®s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with 1SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and

maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Series Trust"s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management®s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Series
Trust"s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor™s report to the
related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor®s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Series Trust to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

September 9, 2019
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Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Turkish Lira Money Market
Fund (the “ Series Trust” ), a series trust of Multi Strategies Fund (the “ Trust” ),
which comprise the statement of assets and liabilities, including the schedule of
investments as at March 19, 2018, the statements of operations, changes in net assets
and cash flows for the year then ended, and notes, comprising a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of the Series Trust as at March 19, 2018, and its
financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing

(“ ISAs” ). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the

“ Auditor”s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements” section of
our report. We are independent of the Series Trust in accordance with International
Ethics Standards Board for Accountants Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants

(“ 1ESBA Code” ) together with ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of
the financial statements in the Cayman Islands, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the IESBA Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Restriction on Use

This report is made solely to the Trustee in accordance with the terms of our
engagement. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Trustee
those matters we are required to state to the Trustee in an auditor®s report and for
no other purpose. We do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the
Trustee, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinion we have formed.

Responsibilities of the Trustee and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these
financial statements in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles, and for such internal control as management determines iIs necessary to
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Series Trust®s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless management either intends to liquidate the Series Trust or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Series Trust's
financial reporting process.
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Auditor”s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor®s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with I1SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Series Trust®s internal
control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management"s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Series
Trust®s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor®s report to the
related disclosures in the financial statements or, iIf such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor®s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Series Trust to cease to continue as a going concern.
Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

September 12, 2018
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I1SA
2019 27
KPMG
P.0. Box 493

SIX Cricket Square

Grand Cayman KY1-1106

Cayman Islands

Telephone +1 345 949 4800

Independent Auditors®™ Report to the Directors and Shareholder
Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of International Management Services
Ltd. (the “ Group” ), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
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December 31, 2018, the consolidated statements of comprehensive income, changes in

shareholder®s equity and cash flows for the year then ended, and notes, comprising significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all
material respects, the consolidated financial position of the Group as at December 31, 2018,
and its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (* IFRS" ).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors®™ Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with International Ethics Standards Board for
Accountants Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code) together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements in the
Cayman Islands and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the IESBA code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated
financial statements in accordance with IFRS, and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing
the Group®s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either
intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to
do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group®s financial reporting
process.

Auditors”® Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and
to issue an auditors® report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists.

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users

taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with 1SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism through the audit. We also:
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Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial

statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group®"s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management®s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group®s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditors™ report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors® report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

KPMG

March 27, 2019

218/218



	表紙
	本文
	第一部ファンド情報
	第１ファンドの状況
	１ファンドの性格
	(1)ファンドの目的及び基本的性格
	(2)ファンドの沿革
	(3)ファンドの仕組み
	(4)ファンドに係る法制度の概要
	(5)開示制度の概要
	(6)監督官庁の概要

	２投資方針
	(1)投資方針
	(2)投資対象
	(3)運用体制
	(4)分配方針
	(5)投資制限

	３投資リスク
	４手数料等及び税金
	(1)申込手数料
	(2)買戻し手数料
	(3)管理報酬等
	(4)その他の手数料等
	(5)課税上の取扱い

	５運用状況
	(1)投資状況
	(2)投資資産
	①投資有価証券の主要銘柄
	②投資不動産物件
	③その他投資資産の主要なもの

	(3)運用実績
	①純資産の推移
	②分配の推移
	③収益率の推移

	(4)販売及び買戻しの実績


	第２管理及び運営
	１申込（販売）手続等
	２買戻し手続等
	３資産管理等の概要
	(1)資産の評価
	(2)保管
	(3)信託期間
	(4)計算期間
	(5)その他

	４受益者の権利等
	(1)受益者の権利等
	(2)為替管理上の取扱い
	(3)本邦における代理人
	(4)裁判管轄等


	第３ファンドの経理状況
	１財務諸表
	(1)2019年３月19日計算期間
	①貸借対照表
	②損益計算書
	③投資有価証券明細表等

	(2)2018年３月19日計算期間
	①貸借対照表
	②損益計算書


	２ファンドの現況
	純資産額計算書


	第４外国投資信託受益証券事務の概要

	第二部特別情報
	第１管理会社の概況
	１管理会社の概況
	２事業の内容及び営業の概況
	３管理会社の経理状況
	(1)貸借対照表
	(2)損益計算書

	４利害関係人との取引制限
	５その他

	第２その他の関係法人の概況
	１名称、資本金の額及び事業の内容
	２関係業務の概要
	３資本関係

	第３投資信託制度の概要
	第４参考情報
	第５その他

	監査報告書

